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I am pleased to present the 2011 annual results of Xingfa
Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company” and, together with

its subsidiaries, the “Group”).

Year 2011 was a very challenging year to Xingfa. Despite the
fragile global economy that laid uncertainty to us, the Group,
strived to sustain its positive results with its strong foundation
and sales network in China. Our Group’s turnover increased by
33.3% to approximately RMB3,067.5 million (2010: RMB2,305.7
million) as a result of the increase in our sales volume. Our
sales volume rose by 29.7% to approximately 140,635 tonnes
(2010: 108,470 tonnes). Net profit attributable to the Company’s
shareholders was approximately RMB14.8 million (2010:
RMB72.9 million). The Directors do not recommend the payment
of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMBO0.035).

Chairman’s Statement
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LIU Libin, Chairman
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With the completion of first phase investments at Sichuan
Chengdu plant and Jiangxi Yichun plant, together with Guangdong
Sanshui plant, our designed production capacity is going to reach
200,000 tonnes per annum in 2012. Besides, Henan Qinyang plant
is expected to commence trial production in the second half of
2012. After the successful execution of production expansion plan,
our customers in every part of China can easily gain access to our
strategically located plants, increasing Xingfa’s market share in
the long run.

From the shareholders’ perspective, I am pleased to see Guangxin
Group has become our cornerstone shareholder since September
2011. With our mission to develop Xingfa Aluminium into an all-
round aluminium profile provider, we can gain the synergy by
accessing to Guangxin’s network including but not limited to its

clientele, corporate finance and investment opportunities.
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Strengthening our balance sheet management, optimizing our
product mix and enhancing our management efficiency will be our
core focuses in 2012. With our commitment and efforts, I believe
our Group will continue its growth momentum in 2012 and deliver

sustainable returns to our shareholders.

On behalf of Xingfa, I would like to take this opportunity to thank
every member of the Board, management and staff for contributing
the success of the Group. Special thanks must be given to Mr.
Luo Su, our Honorable Chairman for his generous contribution
to the Group for more than two decades. He had marked every
remarkable footprint from the set-up stage to the listing of the
Group.

Last but not least, I would like to express my appreciation to
the customers and business partners and shareholders for their

continuing support.

LIU Libin, Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 March 2012.

Chairman’s Statement
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Review of Operations

Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profiles
manufacturers in the PRC and principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles which are applied as
construction and industrial materials. Currently, we are the largest
provider of electricity conductive aluminium profile for metro
vehicles in the PRC. Leveraging on our advanced R&D capability
and commitment to quality, our Group has established extensive
and stable sales networks in the PRC and overseas for the past 20
years. Xingfa Aluminium was awarded as the No.l of the Top-
Ten National Aluminium Profiles Enterprises by the China Non-
Ferrous Metals Fabrication Industrial Association (“CNFA”) in
2003, and such status was re-confirmed by CNFA in February
2008.

With the completion of capital investments at Sichuan Chengdu
and Jiangxi Yichuan plants, these two plants have commenced trial
production in the second half of 2011, adding a long-term growth
momentum to the Group. Besides, Henan Qinyang plant will
commence trial production in the second half of 2012, it marked
another milestone to the Group. With the aim to become all-
round and one-stop aluminum service provider in the PRC, these
strategically-located plants allow Xingfa Aluminium to access
to our clientele closely and tape our products to the market in a
more convenient and cost-effective way. Therefore, it in returns

increases our market share in the long-run.
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ITERYPITES HEIERNITES THERRPITES
BB KR BEEE EHHXE
Chairman & Executive Director Honorable Chairman & Chief Executive Officer & Executive Director
Mr. Liu Libin Executive Director Mr. Luo Riming

Mr. Luo Su
HITES HITES HITES HITES
BEEEXE HMEEE ERABRE FRERE
Executive Director Executive Director Executive Director Executive Director
Mr. Liao Yuqing Mr. Dai Feng Mr. Law Yung Koon Mr. Wang Zhihua

Turnover

Turnover and sales volume recorded approximately RMB3,067.5
million and 140,635 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2011
respectively (2010: RMB2,305.7 million and 108,470 tonnes).
The increase in turnover during the year was mainly due to the
increase in sales volume and increase in average selling price
(“ASP”).

As benefited from the continuous economic development in China,
the demand for aluminium profiles increased generally. Our sales
volume increased by approximately 30% year-on-year to 140,635
tonnes in 2011. In particular, our sales volume for industrial
aluminium profiles increased by approximately 65% year-on-year
to 44,680 tonnes (2010: 27,120 tonnes). The recovery of shipping
industry contributed to the increase in sales orders received
from cold storage containers. On the other hand, construction
aluminium profiles also increased gently by approximately 18%
year-on-year to 95,955 tonnes in 2011 (2010: 81,350 tonnes).
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Our ASP constitutes the average market price of aluminium ingots
and our average processing fee which we billed our customers. In
2011, our average processing fee increased steadily.

The following table sets forth our turnover and its percentage of
turnover by product category for the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2011:

A AR B 2 S P LA B g P T S A S
& F ORI T -k — % —— 4> A
S 2 -3 0 T R R R

FREIIARBRE - —TER F—— 4
T S LR S R 5 2
BT

2011 2010
SEek SE-RE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
AR W T i % AREFI %
Manufacture and sale of aluminium A R AR b
profiles
- Construction aluminium profiles — 4R B A 2,068,256 67.4 1,665,897 722
— Industrial aluminium profiles — TR 850,463 27.7 503,641 21.8
2,918,719 95.1 2,169,538 94.0
Others (Note) oAb (K E) 148,731 4.9 136,211 6.0
Total At 3,067,450 100.0 2,305,749 100.0
Note:  Our Group’s other turnover represented turnover generated from M 7F - A2 [0 o Ath 425 SR 4G R4 K B 85 SR A~ BEEL &

the manufacture and sale of aluminium panels, moulds and spare
parts and the provision of processing services.

Our Group’s turnover by geographical segments during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2011 are as follows:

T TR 5 LA T SR AN TR B A AR 2 S

AEEPABEE X —FFR_F——F1T_H
= H kAR s ) o 2 AR R

2011 2010
R TERRA
RMB million % RMB million %
A R H # e %  ANRFH#HT %
The PRC i 2,924.2 95.3 2,245.4 97.4
North America Ju 3 0.5 0.0 0.7 0.0
Europe Tk P 7.4 0.3 1.4 0.1
Hong Kong T 60.7 1.9 49.5 2.1
Asia Pacific (other than the PRC HROR M (R

and Hong Kong) FUHEFR M) 51.3 1.7 8.3 0.4
Others HoAth 23.4 0.8 0.4 0.0
Total st 3,067.5 100.0 2,305.7 100.0

For the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011, domestic sales
in the PRC in aggregate accounted for approximately 97.4% and

95.3% of our Group’s turnover respectively.

BE-F-FEL T -—F A=t R
R i > e 7 4 4 A 1 A 9 S O 40
97.4% 5295.3%
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Our Group also exports directly to the United States, Europe
and other Asian countries. For the years ended 31 December
2010 and 2011, non-domestic sales in aggregate accounted
for approximately 2.6% and 4.7% of our Group’s turnover

respectively.

The following table sets forth the sales volume and average
selling prices of our principal products during the years ended 31

Management Discussion and Analysis

o BLIE o a Be o3 B

PN - NS I R < o N ) Q= (e
MEAER-BE_F—-FER _F——F+
= H R AR > IR BN B AR A A AR A 2
R B #92.6% 1 4.7% -

FREIIALEELEMPEE T -FEL
Tt A=t —HIEEEZHE P E

December 2010 and 2011: 1 :
2011 2010 Change in %
R4 R RAE 55 8 %
Construction aluminium 2GR R b
profiles
Revenue (RMB000) BB (ARYT ) 2,068,256 1,665,897 24.2
Quantity (fonnes) g () 95,955 81,347 18.0
Average selling price per tonne WA A
(RMB) (ARWITL) 21,554 20,479 5.3
Industrial aluminium profiles T3E SRR
Revenue (RMB000) R (ANRYETT) 850,463 503,641 68.9
Quantity (fonnes) g () 44,680 27,120 64.8
Average selling price per tonne WA A
(RMB) (ARWITL) 19,034 18,571 2.5
Total #EE
Revenue (RMB 000) BB (ANRYFTT) 2,918,719 2,169,538 34.5
Quantity (fonnes) g () 140,635 108,467 29.7
Average selling price per tonne WA A
(RMB) (ARWTL) 20,754 20,002 3.8
Cost of sales B B AR

Our cost of sales increased by approximately 36% year-on-year to
RMB2,813.5 million in 2011 (2010: RMB2,071.7 million) which

was aligned with the increase in turnover.

AR [ T — — AR 2 B R T AR R 4136%
= N R %2.813,500,00070 ( & —F 44 AR

2,071,700,0007C ) » 3 Bl £ B AR FF— 2o

2011 2010 Change in %
e —HFFF S8 %

Average market price of aluminium #f §¢ .2 F ) TE (5
ingots (VAT included) (RMB) BERLD) (AR 17,097 15,900 7.5
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit margin dropped slightly to 8.3% during the year
(2010: 10.2%) whilst sales to production ratio also remained at
97.5% (2010: 97.5%).

The following table sets forth the gross profit margin of our
aluminium profiles:

EYiE Y

TR B R E8 3% (N F — F A
10.2% ) - 1 85 8 A b R IR 45 15 2 R 97.5%
(ZF—FF:975%) -

TR AL TR 2 BRI

2011 2010

—E——4 T

Average gross profit margin FHEH R 8.3% 10.2%
— Industrial aluminium profiles — L 2E 45 7 b 9.3% 13.9%
— Construction aluminium profiles — R T A 6.9 % 8.4%

In 2011, the increase in production costs comprising mainly the
labour and electricity costs and depreciation eroded the average
gross profit margin. This adverse factor caused the drop of gross
profit margin for industrial aluminium profiles by 4.6 percentage
points to 9.3%. For construction aluminium profiles, the Group
was able to increase the processing fee to neutralize the above-
mentioned impact, resulting in a slight drop of gross profit margin
to 6.9% in 2011.

Other revenue and other net loss

Our Group recorded other revenue and other net loss of
approximately RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: RMBS5.0 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2011, more government grants
of approximately RMB9.0 million were received as a result of
the recognition of our successful capital investments in Sichuan
Chengdu and Jiangxi Yichuan plants in the past two years (2010:
RMB3.5 million). However, it was offset by the loss of aluminum
future contracts of approximately RMB3.2 million (2010: RMB1.5
million) and loss of disposal of fixed assets of RMBI1 million
(2010: Nil) arising from the relocation of production facilities

from Guangdong Nanzhung plant to Guangdong Sanshui plant.

T —— A RS T RE AR R E
FRAS BTN DL K T8 BB BT B AR - g FIF
EEAS TEMBM2Z BMETE46ME 0EE
9.3% o b 5 B T A T o AS S ) AT 4 n T
DIHEEY Pl EEER —F—— X BAIE
W2 N REE6.9% o

L Ath W £ Be 3L At s 4R 1

AEBPEE T ——4F T H =+ —HIL4FE
BrAT HA i 65 B H Al s 4R AR 49 A R 159,400,000
Jb ( E—F4E 0 NRH5,000,0007C) ©

e —F—-—FE+H=+—HILFEE  R4EH
AL 40 2 8 4 e R D 1| AR R B VT VY B AR R
Z NG AR B N A2 E 6 L BUR B A A RS
9,000,0007C ( —F—Z4F : AR ¥3,500,0007C) °
RN ZERIETIFEHE S A BB AR
3,200,0007C ( —ZF—%4F : ARH1,500,00070) LA
o A= 7 s 1 R SRR T RO A R R = K R T
B A 2 B [ E E R N R 1,000,0000T (-
T AT ) KA o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Distribution expenses

Distribution costs increased by approximately 31% to
approximately RMB47.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: RMB35.9 million), whilst our distribution expenses
as a percentage of turnover remained steady at approximately
1.5% (2010: 1.6%).

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses recorded approximately RMB119.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2011, which was
approximately 43% higher than that in 2010 (2010: RMB83.4
million) and our administrative expenses as a percentage of
turnover rose to approximately 3.9% (2010: 3.6%). Such increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost and related
expenses and arrangement fees for banking facilities for the three

new plants.
Finance costs

Finance costs increased by approximately 113% to approximately
RMB78.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMB36.8 million) mainly due to the increase in average loans and
borrowings in 2011 to finance the capital expenditures incurred
for the three new plants.

Profit for the year and the net profit margin
In 2011, our Group recorded profit for the year of approximately

RMB14.8 million (2010: RMB72.9 million) while the net profit
margin stood at approximately 0.5% (2010: 3.2%).

o LI o B o3 B

43 85 B AR
HEF—F+ A=+ —HILFEZDHK
AHINEI31% 2 £ N R ¥47,100,0000C ( —F—%&

A N R #35,900,0000C ) o 1 AR 4E B 2 4 8 B 52
W B LR R15% (—F—%F
F11.6%)

7 BB

wEE —E—-—Ft+ A=+ EIJJ:’EF %ﬁ

AT BB 32 40 N R 119,500,000 > #2

AN A143% (—F — E@-J\Eﬁ“%‘s&mo,ooo
) o T AS 4 [ 22 A7 BB S A SR 2 H A W R

FTEF3.9% (ZF—FF :3.6%) - A REIEE

LR B T SAS B kA B BH S DA R A = THL S R S

BUERAT Rl & 2 %2 Pk 2 FH 38 T 2K o

S4B A

BE_LX——HF+_HA=1+—HILFE Zﬁzﬁ%
FASHE TN &1113% 2 %9 N\ B %78,400,0007T ( —
—FHE NE¥36,800,0007C) » )335%‘—&!3}5\_?

AR T K R A B N LA 2 = R R T
EAZERBMZIRMEE S IE-
AF FE 6 A B #b R R
TR A AR SRS M AN R
14,800,0007[3 (= F—F4F 0 AR 72,900,000
) > T Al A R R AR R Y £90.5% (& — AR

3.2%) °
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Analysis of Financial Position
Current and quick ratios

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s current
and quick ratios as at 31 December 2010 and 2011:

54 5 5K Bt 23 B
i B . Y B

NRBINAE G A AR
H=+—H Z 8 Fos @) LR

31 December 31 December

e e L

2011 2010

S e N

Current Ratio (Note) WD R (AT ) 0.88 0.95

Quick Ratio (Note) ) LA () 0.72 0.65
Note: Kt it -

Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the
total current liabilities at the end of the year.

Quick ratio is calculated based on the difference between the total current
assets and the inventories divided by the total current liabilities at the end
of the year.

More borrowings and bills payable remained unsettled at year
end. Meanwhile, less stock was reserved as at 31 December
2011 because of the Spring Festival Holiday at January 2012.
Therefore, current ratio reduced while quick ratio increased.

Gearing ratio

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s gearing
ratio as at 31 December 2011 and 2010:

Ui Bl LR LA A 2 B (R DA A B B
o

L LL A DLAR A% 2 U B R A BLAE B 2 2R R DA
o) & AR

T2 8 8 S AT S5 A oK )5 o &5 55 o B Ut )
> i B — A — B AR % ——
FTZHZ T — D& B WE L
R T 2 B HL AR

Ff R

TRBIIAL G L R R
H=t—RZaMHLRHgE:

31 December 31 December

+ZA=+—H +=ZH=+—H

2011 2010

R TR AR

Gearing ratio (Note) BfE R (M) 44.2% 47.4%
Note: Mt 7t

Gearing ratio is calculated based on the loans and borrowings and
obligations under finance leases divided by total assets and multiplied by
100%.

After the completion of capital investments at the three new
plants, gearing ratio reduced slightly and maintained less than
45%.

R b R DL R R 1 DL Sl AT R DA A
H T3 LA 100% 5154 -

SENE = MBS 2 E ARG % A RIS
TR M AERE 45 %L -
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Inventory Turnover Days 17 55 8 Y

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s TREIIAFEBE T~ FRFFF
. — 2E (=
inventory turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2011 T A = H R AR 2 A7 R A

and 2010: %
For the year ended
31 December
BET-H=ZTHIEEE
2011 2010
—B——fF  CE B
Inventory Turnover Days (Note) 175 A () 51 56
Note: Bt -

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of the £ Jil# H B FTHLHE M il 2 F 4] MAF 4 2 17 B A5 R
beginning and ending inventory balance before provision for the years T BOR A AR T 2 B AR SRR e LAB6S H RT3«
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

Inventories balance as at the respective years ended 31 December 2011 WWE - F——F R F—FF T A=T—HILH

and 2010 represents our raw materials, work in progress and the unsold B4R 2 A BLAN 00 2 JEMDRE ~ 8 S B o B R -
finished goods.

Inventory turnover days remained steadily for the years ended 31 #MZE X ——HF X _F—LF - =1—HIk

December 2011 and 2010. R AR R R R
Debtors’ Turnover days JRRE W R 5k i R

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s debtors [ REIN AL H K E —F ——4F L = F —F4F
turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2011 and 1 3 = H 1E WA 4F )3 2 M i % 2w R 10 Ak

2010: P
For the year ended
31 December
BE+T_H=+—HI4E
2011 2010
I TR AR
Debtors’ Turnover Days (Note) JE A T SRR BRI (B ) 102 84
Note: i

Debtors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the beginning  MEUCHR R MR I LA AR ) B 47 4% 2 58 b ME AUk T B I Wi 22
and ending balance of trade and bills receivables for the years divided by — #5 &% 2 -8Bk DLAFE R 2 8 SRR LA36S H 515 -
turnover during the years multiplied by 365 days.

The increase in debtors’ turnover days was mainly due to more  MEUTHRZFCHRIANE Ny E 8 i it — & —— 4551
sales were concluded in the fourth quarter of 2011, which these EEZHEME  MZE R EA0 5 RMNERY
customers have longer credit periods. K -
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Creditors’ Turnover days

The following table sets out the summary of our Group’s creditors
turnover days during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010:

JRE ARk W K e e 391

TREINAEMBE T —FE L _F - F4F
T A = ok AR AR 2 R A AR R AR A
B

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T A=+ —HIL4¥EE

2011 2010
e St
Creditors” Turnover Days (Note) JEAT AR FR G R (M aE) 93 50

Note:

Creditors’ turnover days is calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending balance of trade and bills payables for the years
divided by the total cost of sales during the years multiplied by 365 days.

More bills payables with longer repayment period were issued
and remained unsettled at year-end, which caused the increase in
creditors’ turnover days.

Cash flow

The table below summarises our Group’s cash flow during the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010:

AT R SRR R DA A AR ) B A 2 58 B IRE AN R T e JRE
o B 45 i 2 T3 BUSR DUAT TR 2 B 65 A 4 1 9f DU
365HE 5 -

T AF 45 R AT T 22 O 8847 AT R BRI A 2 4 >
MY T R SR IR A 0 R
Bl & &

TERMEAEMEE T —FRF—FF
ToH=1— B W EE 2 B e

For the year ended
31 December

BRET A=+ —HILEE

2011 2010

SR & TR EAE

RMB million RMB’million

AR ¥ A& T N R H T

Net cash generated from operating activities R T TS B R AR 275.7 167.6
Net cash used in investing activities BB By T B (513.5) (632.1)

Net cash generated from financing activities Tl T ) O A 4 VR A 338.1 331.7

We generally finance our operations through a combination
of shareholders’ equity, internally generated cash flows, bank
borrowings and our cash and cash equivalents. Our Directors
believe that on a long-term basis, our liquidity will be funded from
operations and, if necessary, additional equity financing or bank

borrowings.

A G ) — 5 075 A B OROME 2 - R A E A 2 Bl IR
BRITEEAALE B LB S EY R
Bt g & o EHEMMGG > RIEM 5 AL B2 HE)
AR A & (U0 7 5 BN BOAR & 5
AT -
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Capital expenditures

Capital expenditure was used for acquisition of property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayment. During 2011, our Group’s
capital expenditures were approximately RMB401.1 million
(2010: RMB652 million). The significant capital expenditures
during the year were mainly for the acquisition of plant and
equipment for the Guangdong Sanshui factory and the three new
plants at Sichuan Chengdu, Jiangxi Yichun and Henan Qinyang.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2011, our Group’s loans and borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB1,704.5 million (31 December
2010: RMB1,251.0 million).

Banking facilities and guarantee

As at 31 December 2011, the banking facilities of our Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,860.7 million (31 December
2010: RMB2,270.3 million), of which approximately RMB2,143.0
million were utilised (31 December 2010: RMB1,345.5 million)

Certain banking facilities amounted to RMB251.3 million (31
December 2010: RMB291.5 million) were guaranteed by certain
related parties.

Pledge of assets

Certain assets of our Group have been pledged to secure the bank
borrowings of our Group. For details, please refer to notes 22(b)
in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Capital commitment

As at the close of business on 31 December 2011, we had capital
commitments contracted but not provided for in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB178 million.

o LI o B o3 B

BA B X

AP 52T AE A 2E - R B Rk I LA AR
G o A F M REE 2 EARHL A NRKE
401,100,000 ( — & —Z 4+ A R 652,000,000
JC) o AR N 2 R RE AR B S T 3 A i R R
KR IR 2 R B R Ak DA B0 )1 R ~ VTP A
DA B B W0 B 2 = AR BT R R o

Fak KA B

AR ——METF T HE—H o REE K
R Al B8 49 B B %1,704,500,0007C ( % —FA4E
+=H=+—H: AR%1,251,000,0007C) °

SAT £ B R

ATE——EF+ A=+ REEZBAT
& B4 B 49 B N R %52,860,700,00000 ( & — &
F+H=+—H: AR¥2,270,300,0007C) > H
&) N R #52,143,000,0000C ( —F—F4E+ A
—+—H: AR%1,345,500,00000) E B A -

ALE 2 25 T 4RAT(E B8 AR ¥251,300,0007C
(ZF—FFE+ - H=+—H0: AE%¥291,500,000
Jt) EEA T B AR -

&k

AR A T DR R AR B RAT R 2
PR o A Bl oF 15 7 2 B AR & 1 B R B 5k 2 B GE
22(b) °

B AR

AT AR A = F U SR AR

AL B Y 2 s K R A O T A E K B A
Z B AR RYE X B N R 178,000,000 ©
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, our Group did not provide any guarantee
in respect of liabilities of any company not being a member of our
Group. Our Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2011.

Foreign Currency Risk

As the Group’s principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on sales and purchases
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations in the PRC, RMB, to which they relate.
The transactions in foreign currency are primarily denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and USD.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings
from banks. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value
interest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the Group’s loans and borrowings are disclosed in
note 27(c) to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report.

Commodity Price Risk on aluminium

Aluminium ingots are the major raw material of the Group’s
products which account for approximately 80% of total cost of
sales. Fluctuations on commodity price of aluminium will have a
significant impact on the Group’s earnings, cash flows as well as
the value of the inventories. The Group uses its future contracts
traded on the Shanghai Future Exchange to reduce its risks arising
from fluctuations in aluminium price. The Group enters futures
based on the inventories on hand, expected usage of aluminium

and sales requirements. The Group considers that it is not cost

effective to maintain a highly effective hedge on transaction basis.

2R fL 1

A EF = H = o AR E S AT
A7 SIf I AR B B A B 8 R 22 8 W) 2 B AR AT A 3
MR ZF——F+ZH="+—H > AEMH I %
HRER A

b e I B

P A A 46 I 2 E B 3B AE T BT - BOAS SR [
AR 2 PR M LA T 0 7 45 T L St A Rl D e B A
R W LA 2 6 Wt i T 3 S0 TR - A1 W 52 5
FEE P TC K R ITTEHE -

I 3R Ja B

ALE [ 2 R R AR B ERAT A B e F T B A
B AT i Bt s B e = a0 | e S S D g )
S P A P R SR B - R R R B o AR 4 4R AT
BE G 2 ) 6 T 2 S A A 3 6 B TS
FMFEE27 ()i 5 -

85 7 oh R L B

B GE oy A AR T E 2 L RURDRE - A KB B B A
H180% - 1 T il fEL A% e 38 i e AC SR I 2 BB A B
GRS AT REEA ERE R AL L
$A o BT H i sE M B & 4 DL G (B RS i)
B 2 R e AR BRI B AT B R
Lo i BORE T i SE N B A o o AR o it
- IEAE By HEAT 8 SIS b I AN A B AR R A




Annual Report 2011 4 #it

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 882 e R A vl

19

Management Discussion and Analysis

Credit Risk

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 29 of the consolidated financial statements, the Group
does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group or the Company to credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.
Human resources

As at 31 December 2011, our Group employed a total of
approximately 3,963 full time employees in the PRC which
included management staff, technicians, salespersons and workers.
In 2011, our Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were RMB146.2 million, represented 4.8% of the
turnover of our Group. Our Group’s emolument policies are
formulated on the performance of individual employees, which
will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from the provident
fund scheme (according to the provisions of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees)
or state-managed retirement pension scheme (for the PRC
employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees according
to the assessment of individual performance.

o BLIE o a Be o3 B

fis £ Ja gt

B A5 B 5 ik 2R B sk 29 B it A AR i 2 B S 4
PRAL > 7 4 [ 37 S0 B AR AT £y JEC At 46 4R - Bl A 42
P w2 ) R 32 0 B JE B o

i B R B

U B < B A A AR A IO R AT B 2 A B
A Ja B o A B T 2 BOR T E W AR B oK
Fe Sy AR B340 2 1 UL - LA DR AR 45 78 2 B 4 ok
i Do B BB B AR 0 5 R > DUREAY
HM R REZ BB EETK -

AN & W

R E A A = H o AR R

A A3,963% AR B > W E R A T Hlr
NE - SHEANBRT A R &4, REH
i B35 P 48 B S B N IR H6146,200,0007C > 1k A< 45
] 45 ZEFHA .8 % o AN S 1) 2 P 4 SR ) 45 AR I R 2
Z BT - A B A AT AR BT o R AR 5 5
PEATE &t B 2 M 5 & s e B 3L AR 4
w24 B R B 2 B R I 2 R R A T
B DL R R B A > A R ) R e AR A I 2R B R
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Prospects

In 2011, we have executed our capacity expansion plan
successfully at the three new plants in Sichuan Chengdu, Jiangxi
Yichun and Henan Qinyang. This organic growth tied perfectly
with the demand growth ahead to extend our market coverage
from South-East China to also South-West and South-East China.
In the second half of 2012, Henan Qinyang plant will commence
trial production. Together with another three established plants,
our annual designed production capacity will reach 200,000
tonnes of aluminium profiles per annum, thereby increasing our

market share in the long-run.

In view of the fragile global economic environment, strengthening
balance sheet management, optimizing product mix and enhancing
operating efficiency will be our main focuses in 2012. In addition,
since Guangxin Group, a state-owned enterprise, has become
our major shareholder, more synergy will be achieved in sharing
corporate resources including but not limited to corporate finance,

investment opportunities etc.

Hil 5

TR — A FRAM B A U1 B AR VL E R K&
TR Rl 0 B 1 =AW B A R B E R D AR R
NSRS 2GS RMN TS EE A PR
i I 0 R 5 (A R 7 25 b B R R M v g M [ A A
AR T SR I o A — AR R AR R0 B
R 5145 B 4 il 7 o B[R] 55 Ah =R B9 AR AR E R
55 > FRAM 0 AR S T A R B 49 A7200,000M £ 71
M = B T 5 51 1 0 B A 0 T 5 0 o

R BRI BRE A TRE > —F — AERMEE
TAR R A B R L E AL A R
0 IR o AL ol R B A A 3 RO 4R B 2R
Ry BAM 0 B A N R E IR TS T B
EARA A EME  HEREE B EDH
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Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Libin, aged 40, became the Chairman of the Company
since 8 September 2011. Mr. Liu obtained a Degree of Executive
Master of Business Administration from South China University
of Technology and has held various senior positions in financial,
marketing and governmental fields. Mr. Liu had been the vice
section chief (I #}{=) of finance division of Department of
Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation of Guangdong Province,
finance manager and deputy general manager of Sinomart
(EBMEA R ), director and
general manager of the finance department of Goldsland Holdings
Company Limited (J§# #& A LA A]) , deputy chairman of
Guangdong Advertisement Co., Ltd. (& % & 44 BR A ) and
chairman of Guangdong Guangxin PACO Technology Co., Ltd.
(EHREHAM SR AR A A, a subsidiary of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd. (& 8 # & B ¥ B4 B A R A
F]) . Mr. Liu is the chairman of the board of Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Co., Ltd. (/& 5B #% §5 265 R A A]) (“Guangdong
Xingfa”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

Development Co. Limited

Mr. Luo Su, aged 73, is the honorable chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and founder of the Group. He has over
20 years of experience in the aluminium profile industry. He is
responsible for the overall management, operations, financial
aspects, corporate directions and strategies of the Group. Mr. Luo
is qualified as an L2595 (industrial economist) based on
his previous experience with Nanhai Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory. Mr. Luo was certified as an outstanding entrepreneur of
private enterprise by the People’s Government of Foshan City
in 2003, an outstanding entrepreneur by the China Non Ferrous
Metals Industry Association in 2005 and received an outstanding
Guangdong patent award for the patent titled #3 & £ J &5 £ [F] /K
V-2 TE$5% 26 (aluminium alloy flat ingot horizontal heat-top
casting device) in 2005. Mr. Luo is a deputy to the 12th Session of
the People’s Congress of Foshan City for a term of five years from
2003 to 2008. Mr. Luo Su is the father-in-law of Mr. Liao Yuqing,
an executive Director.

HELAFRHAEMAR
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Mr. Luo Riming, aged 55, is an executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
procurement and utilisation of equipment and infrastructure for
the business of the Group. Mr. Luo is also responsible for the
procurement of raw materials and the assessment and selection
of suitable suppliers. He has over 15 years of experience in
the aluminium profile industry. Mr. Luo joined the Group
since the establishment of the Group in 1980s. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Luo has worked at Nanhai Hardware Factory
(townshipenterprise), Nanhai Power Supply Bureau, Nanzhuang
Electric Appliance and Furniture Factory, Guangdong Xingfa
Aluminium Profiles Factory and Xingfa Group. Mr. Luo obtained
a bachelor’s degree in economic management by the Guangdong
Radio & TV University in 1998.

Mr. Liao Yuqing, aged 43, is an executive Director. He is also the
supervisor of the sales and marketing department in charge of the
sales and marketing activities of the Group and is responsible for
the planning, development, implementation and evaluation of the
marketing strategies of the Group. Mr. Liao joined the Group in
January 1993. Prior to that, Mr. Liao was in the military between
1986 to 1991. Mr. Liao worked at the Agricultural Bank of China
Jiujiang Branch from 1991 to 1992. Mr. Liao is the son-in-law of
Mr. Luo Su, the chairman of the Group and an executive Director.

Mr. Dai Feng, aged 40, is the executive Director of the Company
since 8 September 2011. Mr. Dai held the qualifications of an
accountant and auditor, China Certified Tax Agent, International
Certified Internal Auditor and Master of International Public
Accountant of Australia (¥ K552 3L€r 51HAl) (“MIPA”). Mr.
Dai has extensive experience in accounting and auditing fields.
He was the head of the supervising and auditing department
and the finance department of J& M 2 Ik JE 2 4> S 4 | A IR
/v #] (unofficial English name being “Guangzhou Yang Cheng
Zhao Ye Enterprise Group Ltd.”), seconded finance controller of
Guangzhou Lingnan International Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. (i
M) 48 T B R A SESE E A PR /N 7)) |, assistant to the head of finance
department of Guangdong Guangxin Holdings Group Ltd. (& #
B RO AL M A R /A F]) and manager of finance department
of Guangdong Guangxin Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (& &% &
G AT R/ R]) . Mr. Dai is currently the supervisor of
FSPG Hi-Tech Co., Ltd. (ff 1l ffl 2 B 5 £ B A AR A | a

company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai is also as a

director and chief financial officer of Guangdong Xingfa.
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Mr. Law Yung Koon, aged 55, is an executive director. He is
responsible for the sales and marketing of our products in overseas
market. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law was the general
manager of Hang Fat Aluminium Profiles Company Limited,
which was the sole distributor of the Group in Hong Kong and
Macau and one of the suppliers of aluminium ingots.

Mr. Wang Zhihua, aged 41, is an executive Director. Prior to
joining the Group in January 2003, from 1992 to 1997, Mr. Wang
worked at Guanglian Industrial Co., Ltd. and the Guangzhou
Branch of Huaxia Securities Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in statistics from the Jiangxi University of
Finance and Economics in 1992. Mr. Wang was certified as a
securities agent for the period from September 2001 to September
2004 by the Securities Association of China.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Shengguang, aged 48, is a non-executive Director of
the Company since 8 September 2011. Mr. Chen held a master’s
degree in Zhongnan University of Economics and Law and
is a certified public accountant in the PRC. He has extensive
experience in accounting and finance fields. Mr. Chen was the
deputy general manager of Guangdong Foreign Trade Imp. &
Exp. Corporation ( i 5L & M B #5 /2 7) , the head of finance
department, the head of clearing centre and the deputy chief
accountant of Guangdong Foreign Trade Group Co., Limited
(FERBFH N EEMARAF) . Mr. Chen is currently the
chief accountant cum head of finance department of Guangdong
Guangxin Holdings Group Limited (& 5 J&& 7 #2 I 45 M A R
24 7F]) and a director of FSPG Hi-Tech CO., Ltd. (111 ¥ %}
FAEE KM EBRZAT) , a company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chen was appointed as a Director of the Company
on 26 August 2011.

HELAFRHAEMAR
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Mr. Wong Siu Ki, aged 36, is a non-executive Director of the  #IKBIJEE > 3658 > AN A Z IEFATE S > v &

Company. He has extensive experience in accounting, finance
and capital market fields. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong
worked in an international accounting firm from 1997 to 2003.
Subsequently, between 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wong was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer cum Company Secretary to Eagle
Brand Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange of Singapore. He joined the Group in Aug
2007 as Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. Since
April 2010, Mr. Wong has appointed a non-executive Director of
the Company.

Mr. Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with First
class honors from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Mo, aged 47, is an independent non-executive Director
appointed on 29 February 2008. He has been a practicing lawyer
in the PRC since 1993 and has been a partner of Goldsun Law
Firm ( [B{5 & Bl 3555 91 ) since 1998. Mr. Chen was admitted
as a lawyer by the Department of Justice of Guangdong Province
in June 1989 and obtained — &% 3 ffi & 4% (Third Grade Lawyer)
from the Department of Personnel of Guangdong Province
in 1999. Mr. Chen graduated from the Political Education
Department of South China Normal University ( % Fifi i /& £2)
in 1986. He has been granted the (FRRTIE S &b HEKE
¥ 7 #) (Certificate of Engaging in Securities Law Business)
jointly by the Ministry of Justice and China Securities Regulatory
Commission in 1996, the <f ffif¢ $ 4E 8 B} 4% 4> 6 7 ME AL o
B E EA%EE) (Certificate of Engaging in Delimitation
of Property Rights of Collective Science and Technology
Enterprises) jointly by the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of
Science and Technology of the People’s Republic of China and the
State-owned Asset supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council in 1998, and the {1772\ ] % 37 # = 55 5l
#5 % 7) (Certificate of Completion of Training on Independent
Directors of Listed Companies) by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and the School of Management of Fudan

University jointly in 2001.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ho, Kwan Yiu, aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director appointed on 29 February 2008. Mr. Ho is the Senior
Partner of Messrs. K.C. Ho & Fong, Solicitors & Notaries where
he is the head of the Litigation and Commercial Department. He is
also the Principal Representative of the Guangzhou Office.

Having studied at Anglia Ruskin University in the United
Kingdom (formerly known as Chelmer Institute of Higher
Education), Junius obtained his Bachelor of Law Degree in 1984.
He then joined the University of Hong Kong for the Post-graduate
Certificate in Laws study. Junius was further awarded with the
honorary degree of Doctor of Laws by Anglia Ruskin University
in 2011.

Junius was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1988. He
was subsequently admitted in Singapore and England and Wales
in 1995 and 1997 respectively. In 2003, he was appointed as a
China-Appointed Attesting Officer.

Junius has over 20 years of legal experience and is committed in
serving the community and contributing to the business economic
co-operation between Hong Kong and the Mainland. Being the
President and Council Member of the Law Society of Hong Kong,
he actively participates in its current affairs. Apart from serving
his own legal profession, he also serves various government and

advisory boards as follows:—

1. Committee Member of Hong Kong Chamber of Commerce
in China — Guangdong;

2. Arbitrator of Wuhan International Arbitration Court and
Zhengzhou Arbitration Commission;

3. Consultant of Guangzhou Municipal Board for International
Investment;
4. Committee/Council Member of Transport Advisory

Committee of the Government of HKSAR;
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11.

12.

13.

14.

Committee Member of Greater Pearl River Delta Business
Council;

Committee Member of Professional Services Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council;

Committee/Council Member of China Trade Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council;

Chairman of Product Eco-responsibility Appeal Board
Panel;

Current Member of Duty Lawyer Service Council in 2011

and Rotated Chairman in 2005 and 2007;

Indigenous Village Representative of Leung Tin Tsuen;

Chairman of the 21st Term of Tuen Mun Rural Committee;

Ex Officio Member of Tuen Mun District Council;

Ex Officio Executive Member of the 33rd Executive
Committee of Heung Yee Kuk; and

Independent Director of Hong Kong Football Association
from 2011 to 2015.

In February 2009, Junius successfully applied to the Ministry

of Justice of the PRC to set up an association with Right Word

Law Firm (Guangdong) creating the first association firm in

Guangdong under the CEPA setting an example for closer co-

operation between Hong Kong and Mainland legal practitioners.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lam, Ying Hung Andy, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive Director appointed on 29 February 2008. He is an
associate member of various professional organisations, namely
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained
his master’s degree in professional accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam has over 20 years of
experience in the accounting, banking and finance sectors and
currently is working as the General Manager of Viking Logistics
Limited, a private company which is an airfreight operator and
transportation company. Mr. Lam was also the president of Dragon
Junior Chamber, a local chamber affiliated with Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong in 2004 and was elected as the national
vice president of the Junior Chamber International Hong Kong
in 2005. From October 2004 to November 2005, Mr. Lam was
an independent non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of Innovis Holdings Limited (now known as Sino
Haijing Holdings Limited), the shares of which are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited and Sino-Life Group Limited, listed
companies on the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited

Senior Management

Mr. Lin Yan, aged 44, is Vice President of the Company and was
appointed on 26 August 2011. Mr. Lin is responsible for the sales
operation of the Company. Prior to joining Xingfa Aluminium,
Mr. Lin worked in a state-owned enterprise, Guangdong Metals
& Minerals Import & Export Group Corporation (& # & 114
Wt T4 M /A |]) , with more than 20 years of experience
in international trade. Mr. Lin held a Bachelor Degree in
Economics from Jinan University and was awarded a certificate
of Economist by Ministry of Human Resources of the PRC in
1996. He is persuing the Degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration at South China University of Technology since
2010. Mr. Lin was also appointed as Vice General Manager of
Guangdong Xingfa.
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Mr. Liu Yuntang, aged 43, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is responsible for production management of the
Group. Mr. Liu joined Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory in 1993. Prior to joining the Group in October 1993,
Mr. Liu worked at Nanhai Guangdong Cable Factory Co., Ltd.
from 1991 to 1993. Mr. Liu was granted a bachelor’s degree in
engineering by the Guangdong Mechanics Institute in 1991. He
was certified as assistant engineer in 1993 by the Nanhai City
Science Technology Committee and certified as engineer in 2001
by the Foshan City Human Resources Bureau.

Mr. Wu Xikun, aged 40, is the deputy general manager for
technology and deputy chief engineer of the Company. Mr. Wu
heads the research and development department and is responsible
for the Group’s production technology systems, development of
new products branding. When Mr. Wu first joined the Group in
July 1994, he worked at Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Profiles
Factory where he was a technician of the quality control section.
Mr. Wu was granted a bachelor’s degree in material science and
engineering from the Guangdong University of Technology in
1994. Mr. Wu was nominated for the Top 10 Outstanding Youth of
Foshan City in 2006.

Mr. Du Jinhong, aged 56, is the deputy general manager of the
Company and is head of the internal audit department. Prior to
joining the Group in 1999, Mr. Du was the director (designate)
of the finance department and chief financial officer of Xingfa
Group from 1999 to 2005. From 1992 to 1999, Mr. Du worked at
Nanhai Hengxing Architectural Ceramics Factory (1992 to 1993)
and Nanzhuang Town Economy Development Head Office (1993
to 1999). He was certified as assistant accountant by the Nanhai
City Science Technology Committee in 1993. Mr. Du holds a
diploma in economics management granted by the Guangdong
Administrative University in 1997.

Mr. Guan Dubiao, aged 41, is the deputy general manager and
head of finance department of Guangdong Xingfa. Mr. Guan is
currently the council member of Foshan City CPA Institute. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Guan started his accounting career in
Foshan Nanzhuang Economic Development Company in 1991.
Subsequently, Mr. Guan served as several important financial
positions within the group companies of Foshan Nanzhuang
Economic Development Company. Mr. Guan joined the Group in
1999 as deputy head of finance department and Chief Accountant
and subsequently promoted as head of finance department. He was

further promoted as deputy general manager since Sept 2011.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (“Company”) present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collected referred to as the “Group”), for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of other members of the Group
are set out in note 14 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2011.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 58 of the
annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: RMBO0.035 per
share).

Report of the Directors
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the right to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday,
31 May 2012 (“Annual General Meeting”), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 29 May
2012 to Thursday, 31 May 2012, both dates inclusive. During such
period, no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the attendance in the Annual General Meeting, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28 May
2012.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five years is set out on pages 163 and 164.

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Details of the Group’s loans and borrowings at the balance sheet
date are set out in note 22 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 12 in notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid-in capital for the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in note 26 in notes to the consolidated

financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme
(“Scheme”) on 29 February 2008. The Scheme became effective
on 31 March 2008. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the
Group to grant options to selected participants as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Participants under the Scheme include directors and employees
of the Group or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group
holds an equity interest; any suppliers, customers, advisers or
consultants of the Group or any Invested Entity; any persons or
entities that provide research development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; any holders of
securities issued by any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and any other groups or classes of participants whom the
Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The principal terms of the Scheme are summarised as follows:

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group must not exceed 41,800,000 Shares,
being 10% of Shares in issue on the date of listing of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange unless approval of the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) has been obtained, and which must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

No share option was granted by the Company since its adoption.
As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 41,800,000 Shares, which represents
10% of the issued Shares as at the date of listing of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange and as at the date of this report.

Report of the Directors
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The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each eligible participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued Shares from time to time.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be
such price as the board of Directors (“Board”) may in its absolute
discretion determine at the time of grant of the option but the
subscription price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of the Board approving the grant of
an option, which must be a business day (“Offer Date”); (ii) the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period
commencing immediately after the business day on which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted in accordance with
the Scheme (“Commencement Date”) and expiring on such date
of the expiry of the option as the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine and which shall not exceed ten years from
the Commencement Date but subject to the provisions for early

termination thereof as set out in the Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the grant of an option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company as nominal consideration for the grant.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 31 March 2008.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new

Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in note 26 in notes to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution calculated in accordance with the Companies,
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands amounted to RMB648,628,000 (2010:
RMB669,072,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2011, sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 22.6% (2010: 22.5%) of the
Group’s turnover where sales to the largest customer accounted
for 5.7% (2010: 5.3%) of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 65.9% (2010:
67.2%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase whereas purchases
from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 50.9%
(2010: 48.8%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five
largest suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2011.

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)
(appointment effective on 8 September 2011)
Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yugqing
Mr. DAI Feng (appointment effective on 8 September 2011)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon
Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Shengguang
(appointment effective on 8 September 2011)
Mr. WONG Siu Ki

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Mo
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy

In accordance with Articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the Articles,
each of Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. CHEN Mo, and Mr. HO Kwan
Yiu will retire from the office of Director by rotation and each
of them, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting. Further, in accordance with Article 112
of the Articles, each of Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. DAI Feng and Mr.
CHEN Shengguang shall hold office until the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at
the Annual General Meeting.

Each of Mr. LIU Libin and Mr. DAI Feng has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of three

years commencing from 8 September 2011.
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Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming, Mr. LIAO Yuqing and
Mr. WANG Zhihua, has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
1 March 2008 and their respective term of appointment has been
renewed for a further three years commencing on 1 March 2011.

Mr. LAW Yung Koon has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from 1
May 2009.

Mr. CHEN Shengguang has been appointed as the non-executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commencing from 8
September 2011.

Mr. WONG Siu Ki has been appointed as the non-executive
Director for a fixed term of three years commencing from 21 April
2010.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from 1
March 2012.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
Company considered all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 21 to 28 of the annual report.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2011, our Group employed a total of
approximately 3,963 full time employees in the PRC which
included management staff, technicians, salespersons and workers.
In 2011, our Group’s total expenses on the remuneration of
employees were RMB146.2 million, represented 4.8% of the
turnover of our Group. Our Group’s emolument policies are
formulated on the performance of individual employees, which
will be reviewed regularly every year. Apart from the provident
fund scheme (according to the provisions of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for Hong Kong employees)
or state-managed retirement pension scheme (for the PRC
employees) and medical insurance, discretionary bonuses and
employee share options are also awarded to employees according
to the assessment of individual performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set
out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30(a) in notes to the consolidated
financial statements and in the paragraph headed “Connected
transactions” in this report, no Director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, its holding company

or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2011.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long position

Report of the Directors
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2011

R =4

Company/Name of Numberand +Z-H=1+—H

associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities ] 38 8 2 F¢ I 4

ov )R WG T R HHEA g/ w7 BH RN kb

Company LUO Su Beneficial owner 54,956,200 13.15%
AT i3 73 Hia A A ordinary Shares
54,956,200/
W i

Company LUO Riming Beneficial owner 51,813,700 12.40%
A #&H HawEa A ordinary Shares
51,813,700/

Company LIAO Yuqing Beneficial owner 48,200,000 11.53%
b /| B B HisHA N ordinary Shares

48,200,000
W
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at
31 December

2011
R ——4
Company/Name of Number and +Z-H=+—H
associated corporations Name of directors Capacity class of securities [Fi) 2 58 7 i I
2 )/ B T 4 WHEH 50y w7 A R R A4k
Company LAW Yung Koon Beneficial owner 19,050,000 4.56%
AN 20 FH 55 HisHa N ordinary Shares
19,050,000/%
o
Interest of spouse 1,719,000 0.41%
i {8 HE 4 ordinary Shares
1,719,000/
o
DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE O By < BE A

SHARES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2011 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisitions of Shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 17
March 2008, none of the Directors hold any interests in any

competing business against the Company or any of its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED
TO DISCLOSE THEIR INTERESTS
PURSUANT TO PART XV OF THE SFO

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons, other than a
Director or the executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position

Report of the Directors
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LR 27 e 9 0% 9] 58 XV 2 4 i
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Percentage
shareholding in
the same class of
securities as at

31 December 2011

R ——4F

Number and +ZHA=+—H

Name of entities Capacity class of securities [F] 60 % 27 i it =

iy EAy i 5t W B H R [EE:2:A

Guangxin Aluminium (HK) Beneficial owner 123,000,000 29.43%
Limited - ¥:3 TN ordinary Shares
5 R 6 A PR ] 123,000,000/8%

VR TR 4 B A T A R A Interest of controlled 123,000,000 29.43%
corporation ordinary Shares
32 P8 1 12 R 4 123,000,000%

&R A AR BUT A Interest of controlled 123,000,000 29.43%
EREMNERY corporation ordinary Shares
325 U5 P HE AR 123,000,000/

Save as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Directors’
interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, as at 31
December 2011, no other person had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS [5H 3 22 5
A. The following entities are connected parties of the A. PLR A A B A N E 2 B A L I RS
Company and had transactions with the Group during the R -— T ZA=E— HIEFE AR A
year ended 31 December 2011: EEIETR Y -
Name of the entity Connection with the Company
ki SLA v W 2 B AR
Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. Owned as to 51% by Guangdong Xingfa Group Co., Ltd., a company
(“Leahin Coating™) which is owned as to 46%, 33% and 21% by Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO
i 1Ly 57 B AR R A Riming and Mr. LIAO Yuqing respectively. Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr.
(S BER ) LUO Riming and Mr. LIAO Yuging is an executive Director.

F R o L A [ AT BR N R R 51 % - 1T R SR S 2 5 13 A B = HI) 43
HH 2 Ak oAk~ B H ISR KB R BB AE A 46% > 33% K 21%  HE#R ST
AU RBE ERAER A ARITES -

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Owned as to 46% by Mr. LUO Su, as to 33% by Mr. LUO Riming and as
Door & Window Co., Ltd. to 21% by Mr. LIAO Yuqing. Each of Mr. LUO Su, Mr. LUO Riming and
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) Mr. LIAO Yugqing is an executive Director.

Ji B % o 1 A PR T 53 W B A RS A~ AR H W Se A OB BB AR B 46% - 33% 5 21% o A

([ B3 2 ] ) B RH M R RS A RATESE
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B. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the following B. NEE_F -—H+_H=+t—HIL&

continuing connected transactions were non-exempt JBE o R B A A B SE  J FE R  AR A I
continuing connected transactions and are subject to & Gy » Wi TSN A BLE

announcement requirements.

1. The following is a brief description of the L. PR 25 R SRR L AE 5 2 Ay
continuing connected transactions:

i. Purchase of coating materials by &  During the year ended 31 December 2011, Guangdong
WS SR A BR /A A (Guangdong  Xingfa purchased from Leahin Coating paint materials for
Xingfa Aluminium Co., Ltd.) use in the surface finishing process.

(“Guangdong Xingfa”) from Leahin WM #%E -F—— 4+ H =+ —HILFE RN > B RFLE
Coating 1) 37 B ¥ R 2 T B B TR 2 R A R o

i. B SR L% g 26 A R 2w (TR R

B 1) n) 37 B R R R TR For the year ended 31 December 2011, Guangdong Xingfa
spent approximately RMB2,165,000 on purchasing paint
materials from Leahin Coating.
WE-F-—F+ A=+ HIL4FE BEREESH
A1 N R 2,165,000 1) 7. B 5 454 0 1 4 JA b o

ii. Sale of aluminium profiles by During the year ended 31 December 2011, Guangdong
Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa  Xingfa sold to Xingfa Curtain Wall certain construction
Curtain Wall materials specified by Xingfa Curtain Wall. The

ii. B R B 1) L o R B 6 R b construction materials purchased by Xingfa Curtain Wall

were further processed into window and curtain wall and
sold to its customers.

WEEF T A= H IR E R R
T L8 e L B A S 2 A T A o BILER A A
W HR BN T P R R R AR ) LR e

For the year ended 31 December 2011, Guangdong Xingfa
sold construction materials to Xingfa Curtain Wall for
approximately RMB95,451,000.
BWE-Z——F+A=+—HILFE FREEHE
T BB 2 A A1 N R H95,451,0007C ©
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Set out below is the annual caps for the year ended
31 December 2011 of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out above:

N S ST R TR A A B L
HBE_F——F+_A=1+—H
IR4F 2 T E R

For the year ended

31 December 2011
BRE_Z——4

T+ A=+ —HILEE

i. Purchase of coating materials by Guangdong Xingfa from

Leahin Coating

i. Ji R B 5% i) S B R M W A R

ii. Sale of aluminium profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to

Xingfa Curtain Wall
ii. Ji R B 1) B R L A

As announced by the Company on 29 March
2012, the aggregate value of the sale of aluminium
profiles by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain
Wall (“Sale Transactions™) for the year ended 31
December 2011 exceeded the annual cap previously
announced in the Company’s announcement dated
8 March 2011. Therefore, the continuance of the
Sale Transactions in the year ended 31 December
2011 after the annual cap has been exceeded have
not obtained prior independent shareholders’
approval.

Views of the independent non-executive Directors:
The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that the transactions

have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business

of the Company;

RMB12,600,000
AR #$12,600,0007C

RMB35,000,000
A E#35,000,0007C
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) on normal commercial terms or terms no
less favourable to the Company than terms
available to or from independent third

parties; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued a letter to the Board containing
his findings and qualified conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group set out on page 41 of the annual report in
accordance with Main Board Listing Rule 14A.38.
The auditor concluded that nothing has come to
his attention that causes him to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors;

(ii) were not in all material respects, in
accordance with the pricing policies of
the Company for transactions involving
the provision of goods or services by the
Group;

Report of the Directors
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(iii)  were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the terms of the relevant

agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the annual cap amounts
for the year ended 31 December 2011,
except that, as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2012, the
actual sales amount of aluminium profiles
by Guangdong Xingfa to Xingfa Curtain
Wall exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2011 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8
March 2011.

C. The Directors confirm that the material related party
transactions as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors confirm that save as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 29 March 2012, the Company
has, where applicable, complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has
complied fully with the code requirements under the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in the
then prevailing Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company’s
corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in pages 46 to 55 of the annual report.

The Company adopted a set of Codes for securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint KPMG as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU LIBIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

Report of the Directors
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Prior to 29 March 2012, the Company has adopted the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in
the then prevailing Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) as its own code of
corporate governance. The directors of the Company (“Directors”)
consider that throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Company has complied with the code provisions under the CG
Code. On 29 March 2012, the Company adopted the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
(with amendments to be effective on 1 April 2012) as its own code
of corporate governance to replace the CG Code.

The Directors are committed to upholding the corporate
governance of the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise the interests of
the shareholders.

Set out below is a detailed discussion of the corporate governance
practices adopted and observed by the Company throughout the
year ended 31 December 2011.

A. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a set of codes for securities
transactions on terms no less exacting than those set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code™) as its own code of conduct for
securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

()

Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination of
executive Directors and non-executive Directors.
As at the date of this report, the board of Directors

(“Board”) consisted of the following Directors:
Executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman)
(appointment effective on 8 September 2011)
Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman)
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LIAO Yuqing
Mr. DAI Feng
(appointment effective on 8§ September 2011)
Mr. LAW Yung Koon
Mr. WANG Zhihua

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. CHEN Shengguang
(appointment effective on 8 September 2011)
Mr. WONG Siu Ki

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHEN Mo

Mr. HO Kwan Yiu
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy

The executive Directors, with the assistance from
the senior management, form the core management
team of the Company. The executive Directors
have the overall responsibility for formulating the
business strategies and development plan of the
Group and the senior management are responsible
for supervising and executing the plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together, the

“Group”).
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(ii)

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there
were two full board meetings held, at which:

- the Directors approved the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 and reviewed the results
announcement, annual report and the
circular to the shareholders of the Company
in relation to the general mandate proposal
and re-election of the Directors retiring by
rotation; and

- the Directors approved the interim results
of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2011 and reviewed the results
announcement.

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
the Board also discussed and approved the
following matters by way of circulation of written
resolutions:

- the Directors approved the signing of the
new master agreement for the continuing
connected transactions;

- the Directors approved the securities
dealings by three executive Directors
and the issue of the price sensitive
announcement on 11 July 2011;

- the Directors approved the issue of profit
warning announcement in respect of the
unaudited results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2011; and

- the Directors approved the appointment
of Mr. LIU Libin and Mr. DAI Feng as
executive Directors and the appointment of
Mr. CHEN Shengguang as a non-executive

Director.

(i)

R
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Y LY
A 6 B ROl
Prior notices convening the Board meetings were WEMREEGGR EHFTFHZ
despatched to the Directors setting out the matters WO AR TS TES -
to be discussed. At the meetings, the Directors ik b B R T i it
were provided with the relevant documents to be HE2Z A B S - AN 2 08 Al f 2
discussed and approved. The company secretary of AT H TG RN -
the Company is responsible for keeping minutes for
the Board meetings.
(iii)  Attendance record (iii) Gl gk
The following is the attendance record of the board DT AEEGREBE _F——4F
meetings held by the Board during the year ended T A=ET—HIEFE R ZE
31 December 2011: HE Gk R
Attendance at
meeting
&k R &
Executive Directors H 17 #EF
Mr. LIU Libin (Chairman) BISLAEE () 0/0
Mr. LUO Su (Honorary Chairman) BERRCA (RELE) 2/2
Mr. LUO Riming (Chief executive officer) AW (T ) 2/2
Mr. LIAO Yuging B B etk 2/2
Mr. DAI Feng CigeSinan 0/0
Mr. WANG Zhihua FEEELE 212
Mr. LAW Yung Koon et S A 2/2
Non-executive Directors B 17 # F
Mr. CHEN Shengguang BRI Ol e A 0/0
Mr. WONG Siu Ki HIRRSE A 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors # AT #EFH
Mr. CHEN Mo BiCER S 2R 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu il S5k 212

Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MR S R 2/2
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(iv)

(v)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
considers that all independent non-executive
Directors have appropriate and sufficient industry
or finance experience and qualifications to carry
out their duties so as to protect the interests
of shareholders of the Company. One of the
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. LAM
Ying Hung Andy, has over 22 years in the
accounting, banking and finance sectors and is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has received their annual written
confirmations from all independent non-executive
Directors in respect of their independence. The
Board considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are being considered to be independent.

Relationship among members of the Board

Mr. LIAO Yugqing, an executive Director, is the son-
in-law of Mr. LUO Su, an executive Director and
the Honorary Chairman. Save as aforesaid, there
is no other family relationship between any of the
Directors or chief executive officer. All of them are

free to exercise their independent judgment.

(iv)

(v)
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
are segregated. From 1 January 2011 to 7 September
2011, Mr. LUO Su was the chairman of the Board. Since
8 September 2012, Mr. LIU Libin has been appointed as
the chairman of the Board. The chairman of the Board
is chiefly responsible for managing the Board. Mr. LUO
Riming is the chief executive officer of the Company who
takes charge of the supervision of the execution of the
policies determined by the Board. The chairman also chairs
the Board meetings and briefs the Board members on the
issues discussed at the Board meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed term of two years commencing from
1 March 2012.

The independent non-executive Directors have attended the
Board meetings and provided independent judgment on the
issues discussed.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a remuneration committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The remuneration committee comprises Mr. HO
Kwan Yiu (chairman), Mr. CHEN Mo, Mr. LAM Ying
Hung Andy, Mr. LUO Su and Mr. LIU Libin. The primary
duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior

management.

Corporate Governance Report
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board
appointed Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. DAI Feng and Mr. CHEN
Shengguang as additional Directors. The remuneration
packages and the service agreement of these additional
Directors had been considered and approved by way of
circulation of written resolutions by all members of the
Board. As such, no remuneration committee meeting had
been held during the year ended 31 December 2011. It is
the Company’s policy that the remuneration package of
each Director and senior management shall be determined
by reference to the duties, responsibilities, experience and
qualifications of each candidate.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a nomination committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The nomination committee comprises Mr. LUO Su
(chairman), Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, Mr. CHEN
Mo and Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy. The primary duties of
the nomination committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on the nominees for appointment as Directors
and senior management of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no nomination
committee meeting had and the nomination committee has
considered and approved by way of written resolutions
the nomination of Mr. LIU Libin, Mr. DAI Feng and Mr.
CHEN Shengguang as additional Directors.

According to the articles of association of the Company,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and offer themselves for
re-election. The Directors to be retired by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last
appointment. At a full Board meeting held on 31 March
2011, the Directors have reviewed the performance of the
Directors who would retire at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 3 June 2011 and approved to
recommend the reelection of such Directors at the annual

general meeting of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION G.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, KPMG, the
Group’s external auditor, provided annual audit services
and other service to the Company. A breakdown of the
remuneration of the Group’s external auditor is as follows:

1B 36 B IR WAl

B B <

REE_F - —F+ A=+ HI%F
JEE > A S B 1 RS A% Wi R B g S S
I 1) A% ) AR A A OR B % At
B o A G2 F A 0 A% BChT 2 T < W A A S

For the year ended
31 December 2011

BKE_F——4
S
1k 4
(RMB’000)
(ANRIEF L)
Audit service % 8RB
Annual audit services AF T A% OIS 1,150
Other service Ho Al Al 75 480
AUDIT COMMITTEE H #H®EZBE®

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference based upon the provisions and
recommended practices of the CG Code. The primary
duties of the audit committee are to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems
of the Group. At present, members of the audit committee
comprise Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy (chairman), Mr.
CHEN Mo and Mr. HO Kwan Yiu, being the three
independent non-executive Directors of the Company.

Ay ) EARGR A A ST I 2 S0 R ik
WAL AL 2 B g 3 DL TS E LR
RERIE - W& B 2 T B A B
S AR T 2 B R R S A S B R
BioHAl FEEZREH AN A B
FPATE R RIP I (EW) ~ BORSEE
LA A S e A AL -
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PEEF - —F T A=+t H I

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the audit

committee has held two meetings, at which:

- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2010,
who is of the opinion that such statement complied
with the applicable accounting standards, the Stock
Exchange and legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures have been made;

- the audit committee have reviewed the
reasonableness and fairness of the continuing
connected transactions of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2010; and

- the audit committee members have reviewed
and discussed with the external auditors of the
Company the Group’s unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30
June 2011.

The following is the attendance record of the committee
meetings held by the audit committee during the year
ended 31 December 2011:

- #REBEECRITWKE® &L

FEUEBGMACEHAEREE
FoFEFTA=STHIEFEZ
B T B WK A s B I SR Y
AN A BT A AT R R LR A
R AT B ah v R B 52 B
EIHLE > IR CAF R A R

AT B R A A IR
FoBE LA H IR
FEAALSE 5 2 0 A B A T4 -
3

L B EN A C AL RSN
A B % w e R R R R
——EANHA=ZTHIEAMAZ AR
AR B B L -

UTRAEZEBGRERE-F——F 1=
A=+—HIFERTZEGGRIHE

Attendance at

meeting

&k th &

Mr. CHEN Mo W R S AR 2/2
Mr. HO Kwan Yiu fa] 5 22 564 2/2
Mr. LAM Ying Hung Andy MR S A 2/2
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the accounts for the year ended 31 December
2011.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

INTERNAL CONTROL

With a view to enhancing the Group’s internal control
system, the Company has appointed an accounting firm
in the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2011
to review the internal control regarding the production
planning and process. The Group is in the process of
improving and establishing the internal control measures
as recommended by such accounting firm.

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the
Company’s system of internal control and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board will conduct periodical review
on the progress of the improvement and enhancement with
an effort to enhance the internal control measures of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

LIU Libin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2012

Corporate Governance Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

fok B U B e 2 T S A B e o

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), set out on pages 58 to 162,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Certitied Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

Ak B WAL B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
R A B

2011 2010
Sk SE-EE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 7 ANR¥TFx NRHTF T
Turnover B 3 3,067,450 2,305,749
Cost of sales 59 8 A (2,813,498) (2,071,700)
Gross profit EH 253,952 234,049
Other revenue oAb % 4 13,343 6,803
Other net loss A 48 T A 4 (3,970) (1,802)
Distribution costs 85 AR (47,075) (35,920)
Administrative expenses TR % (119,491) (83,378)
Profit from operation 28 v A 96,759 119,752
Finance costs T 35 A 5(a) (78,371) (36,825)
Profit before taxation 53 756 ij &z 1l 18,388 82,927
Income tax expenses JIT 45 %1 BA 52 6 3,576) (10,044)
Profit for the year attributable A< 2w HE £t JBt 5 W 4 47 i
to equity shareholders of i
the Company 14,812 72,883
Basic and diluted earnings per 5 B ik A B 9 B
share (RMB yuan) (AR #oC) 10 0.035 0.174

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part of these financial

statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of

the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in
note 26(b).

5565 162 H 2 Wik 2 A WA B R 9 — 3 o A
)R 2 P R A 4 52 i ) B A S B A SR

5526(b) ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

7 W A
for the year ended 31 December 2011
#BEF A= HILFEE

2011 2010
SEE CFEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARW T N BRWET T

Profit for the year A B ¥ A 14,812 72,883
Other comprehensive income for A B b 2 T WL 4

the year
Exchange differences on translation of a5 v N\ RILAE ([P ])

financial statements of operations DLANETS 2 P BS ok 2

outside the People’s Republic of E 58, 7 88

China (the “PRC”) (2,188) (1,036)
Total comprehensive income for AR 2 i) HE o B SR HE A 4R B 4 i

the year attributable to equity W £ 48 AR

shareholders of the Company 12,624 71,847

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part of these financial — 5565% 162 E 2 Bt 5T F A% BAH5 % 19 — B4
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fr o 5 R DL R
at 31 December 2011
WK —— A H = —H

2011 2010
S SE-EE
Notes RMB 000 RMB’000
ks AR T N BT IT
Non-current assets Ik Wi B B )
Property, plant and equipment VESY: SN E ] 12 1,331,446 976,726
Lease prepayments TEAT A & 13 379,957 379,919
Prepayment for machinery W2 TS %ﬁ 56,326 107,050
Deferred tax assets 5 SE Bl JE A 25(b) 39,191 25,726
1,806,920 1,489,421
Current assets i By & e
Trading securities b 15 1,005 -
Inventories & B 16 389,117 393,534
Derivative financial instruments i 4w T H 17 = 1,324
Trade and other receivables 22 B H At i 5k H 18 1,275,835 632,406
Pledged deposits £ K AE K 19 194,962 77,017
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB4 EY 20 244,222 144,926
2,105,141 1,249,207
Current liabilities i B 11|
Trade and other payables 38 5 B FoAh A 3RIH 21 1,258,246 559,286
Loans and borrowings GOSN 22 1,061,527 706,036
Obligations under finance leases EiS=gitl %‘ HAT 23 24,430 23,271
Derivative financial instruments A 4 i T H 17 5,117 520
Current tax payables JEEAST B 38 i 1 25(a) 32,097 23,996
2,381,417 1,313,109
Net current liabilities i B £ A (276,276) (63,902)
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % & Uk i Bh £1 & 1,530,644 1,425,519
Non-current liabilities Ik U By £ 6%
Loans and borrowings ok M f B 22 643,000 545,000
Obligations under finance leases il & & H AT 23 - 24,408
Deferred income R SE A 24 112,237 78,698
755,237 648,106
Net assets W E 775,407 777,413
Capital and reserves JBE A B fii 6
Share capital e A 26 3,731 3,731
Reserves it 771,676 773,682
Total equity HE 25 44 %0 775,407 777,413

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

March 2012.
Liu Libin
VIRV Y

Chairman

E

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part of these financial
statements.

Luo Riming

MHM

Executive Director

HITEF

Eé};f?—:@zﬁ U A e SR
ED

5653162 H 2 M 5k i A BB 3R 19— AR 4
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Statement of Financial Position

S 385 51K Dt &

at 31 December 2011
W oE——FEf ZH =1 —H

2011 2010
B ZE-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it ANR¥Fix NR¥TC

Non-current assets I o B B
Property, plant and equipment VENN N & 12 127 224
Investments in subsidiaries A A 2 R 14 626,654 626,654
626,781 626,878

Current assets Ui B B
Trade and other receivable 2 5 T oAt JE Wi 2 JH 18 28,433 46,666
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB4 Y 20 792 921
29,225 47,587
Current liabilities i B £

Trade and other payable 22 Gy J oAb JE A I 21 3,647 1,662
Net current assets i B & R 25,578 45,925
Total assets less current liabilities  #8 ¥ i Il i B £1 14 652,359 672,803
Net assets jgz RN 652,359 672,803

Capital and reserves JBE A B fik
Share capital e A 26 3,731 3,731
Reserves fiti 1#f 26 648,628 669,072
Total equity HE 75 A4 652,359 672,803

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 & & — T4F = A T4 JL H M S5 g i R HE

March 2012. T 5 o
Liu Libin Luo Riming
IRy AW
Chairman Executive Director
FRE HIrEH

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part of these financial #5657 162 F X Mt 5l 2 A% BA B £ 19— FF 4 o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011
#BEF A= HIE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

A A R
PRC
Share Share Capital Other statutory ~ Exchanges Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserves reserves earnings Total
Bk RebEE O BARE  RRRE vREERE O EARE  REEA it
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ARRTE  AREFT  ARKFT  ARETT  ARKTZ  ARKTT  ARFTT  AREFT
Note 26(c) ~ Note 26(d)(i) ~ Note 26(d)(iii) ~ Note 26(d)(ii) ~ Note 26(d)(iv) ~ Note 26(d)(v)
Wit2ee)  Wa2eas)  Wabsdi) - Waked)  WEede)  KEed)
Balance at | January 2010 REF-FE-f-B258 1M1 196,160 3,054 209,822 63,777 (502) 240,172 716,214
Changes in equity for 2010: “Z-ZERGEY
Profit for the year R - - - - - - 72,883 72,883
Other comprehensive income EfvAm i - - - - - (1,036) - (1,036)
Total comprehensive income for the year EERTNESH - - - - - (1,036) 72,883 71,847
Dividends approved in FREFECEREZ KA
respect of the previous year (Note 26(b)) (H7i260)) - - - - - - (13,794) (13,794)
Capital contribution & - - 3,146 - - - - 3,146
Appropriation to reserves R - - - - 10,630 - (10,630) -
Balance at 31 December 2010 REF-ZELZAZ+-H
Vi | 3731 196,160 6,200 209,822 14407 (1,538) 288,631 177413
Balance at | January 2011 RoF——E—f-N 288 3731 196,160 6,200 209822 74407 (1,538) 288,631 413
Changes in equity for 2011: “R—FEREY:
Profit for the year SRR A - - - - - - 14812 14812
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 - - - - - (2,188) - (2,188)
Total comprehensive income for the year FERTRG AR - - - - - (2,188) 14812 12,624
Dividends approved in FREFECEREZRE
respect of the previous year (Vore 261b)  (Mifat268)) - - - - - - (14,630) (14,630)
Appropriation (o reserves R - - - - 2981 - (2981) -
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-F-—FEF+ZH=+—H
kit 3,731 196,160 6,200 209,822 71388 (3,726) 285,832 775,407

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part

statements.

of these financial

SR65 162 H 2 M 5k b A BB i 3R i — AR 4
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEBlemER

for the year ended 31 December 2011
#BEF A= HILFEE

2011 2010
SR CFECEE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 7t AR T NR¥T T
Operating activities REBWEH
Cash generated from operations ET S B4 20(b) 284,625 182,583
Income tax paid by the w i JE 2\ O A T A A
subsidiaries in the PRC (7,693) (14,963)
Income tax paid by the T s B 2 F) AR A B
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (1,247) -
Net cash generated from KW EsHRETFH
operating activities 275,685 167,620
Investing activities BEEH
Interest received B A S 4,627 2,967
Proceeds from pledged deposits 2K A7 3 I 15 50 269,367 44,455
Payment for pledged deposits O 1 77 3 AT 3 (387,312) (31,920)
Payment for property, plant and L ERY NS E L ENE
equipment (392,704) (560,422)
Payment for lease prepayments TE A AR 4245 3K (8,379) (91,723)
Proceeds from disposal of WY BB SRR TS
property, plant and equipment A 1,880 4,500
Payment for purchase of trading W B A2 5 w6 S AR
securities (1,005) -
Net cash used in investing BEWB MRS FH

activities

(513,526) (632,143)




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %% 88 25 ¥ it A PR 2 w]

Annual Report 2011 4F#i

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEBlemER

for the year ended 31 December 2011
R A B

2011 2010
R4 “E-F4E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ks AR T N RWEToT
Financing activities A& E)
Interest paid O FLE (75,638) (33,108)
Proceeds from loans and B A BT A SK0A
borrowings 1,353,421 1,384,947
Repayment of loans and BEAER KGR
borrowings (899,930) (981,354)
Capital element of finance lease Rl A 4 A O AT Ay
rentals paid (23,271) (22,321)
Interest element of finance lease il A 5 A 4 A5 3R R 0
rentals paid (1,836) (2,704)
Dividends paid 2B 26(b) (14,630) (13,794)
Net cash generated from financing  Fil & {if B) 7 15 51 4 15 56
activities 338,_1}§ ________ §3_ 1_,6_6_6_ ~
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Bl & KRB &S @M,
and cash equivalents (WA ) F# 100,275 (132,857)
Cash and cash equivalents at W—H BB & &4
1 January HHED 144,926 279,836
Effect of foreign exchange rate [ 2 5 B & 5 B
changes 979) (2,053)
Cash and cash equivalents at RT_A=+—HWH& R
31 December BE&%FEHY 244,222 144,926

The notes on pages 65 to 162 form part of these financial 25657 162 Z [t 5k £ A WA B &= 09 — &0 475
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual IFRSs
promulgated by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and related
Interpretations. These financial statements also
comply with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted and consistently applied by the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to

as “the Group”) is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries.

B U B A M

1 FEEEGHHBUR

(a)

(b)

faREM

7% SR 5 ik 2 i R R A e e
SUP (T 1 ¢ S 55 s 5 ¥4 U0 ] ) A 4o
I 5% P i S o Y4 )6 95 el o R it
U EEG (HMEEgFENER
B 1) AR 0 BT AR 14 11 51 B
5 i A YA R (T
TRt ] ) B B R o 5% 4F B
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TE e gk 22 i i 2 b iR R Y 2 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B YU B o M

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading

securities (see note 1(d)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note

1(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect

on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

1

EEGEHBOR ()

(b)

WMBHRERZ MR ()

VB R 2 e B DR S A i 2
SR E S MY SO 2 B
W7t 2 45 o3 - {E B AR 2 T 51 & A B
Gh:

— NERBT S EEZ ST A
(EMt1d)) s &

— it &/ T H (2 K
1(e)) °

BB A AT G R U o v
B 2 A0 Wk g > ZH AR 5 SR
SR T AN B 2 o~ AR e
<5 RN B A R AR R o 5% A il
w8 {1 80 AR R 1 A
PG AR W %2 1 UL B A B A
TR A P9 2R AR > T A A 2R A A
BT % 45 SR M IR TR
B N A AR R (E 2 SR o FT R AS
AT BB B 4 A R AN o

CRPTE] IS SRR T U SRRy
it Z B wT e e ATl U (0
16 AT 8 5% BE 52 T A ) BAE AT 9 1H] &%
RACHIE] (M 6 5T 5228 H R SR 2
W) W RS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(0

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB276,276,000 which indicated the existence
of an uncertainty which may cast doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
As at 31 December 2011, the Group had undrawn
banking facilities totaling RMB717,699,000 for
working capital purposes. In addition, the Group is
currently in the process of negotiating with certain
banks to renew its current bank loans upon expiry
or to obtain additional banking facilities in order to
improve its liquidity position. The Directors have
evaluated all the relevant facts available to them
and are of the opinion that there are good track
records or relationships with banks which would
enhance the Group’s ability to renew its current
bank loans upon expiry or secure adequate banking
facilities to enable the Group to continue to
operate as a going concern and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

B U B A M

1 EEGSEHEOR )

(b)

(0

WMBHRERZ MR ()

WoE——FEt+ A=+ —H &
L R A AR R B E A
[ 276,276,000 » Bi/R 17 75 1] #g
S 4R [ 2 A A A4 BE 0 R A B 1)
ZARHBHME R E—-—F T+ H
=+ —H > AREEE MRS H S
N E#717,699,0007C 2 LA 4 4 &
& R 2 SRATRNE - LA > AR SR
B IF B T SR AT 6 7 2 i Tl e o A
IR SR AT Bl A AR AN R AT Rl
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FEAS T D% S ] ST M IR #
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8 B vl G R AR A TS AT B
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¥t ) 2 )

WEF 85 2 ) 4 A S I 47 o )
A I A R B R B B R A
BHOR > LA p A I
0N R B 52 A 4R B 5 ) o AE T
il 422 T HE BRF > € 2% 18 H AT R AT AR
B B E -




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 %52

A PR 2 W

Annual Report 2011 4F#i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B S B A M

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries (continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).
Investments in securities held for trading
Investments in securities held for trading are

Any attributable

transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as

classified as current assets.

incurred. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any dividends or interest earned on these
investments as these are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out in note 1(q)(iv) and (V).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Group does not

adopt hedge accounting.

1 FEEGFTEOR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statements of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(Note 1(h)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

. Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of
the lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 35 years after the date

of completion.

. Plant and machinery 10 — 20 years

. Motor vehicles 3 — 5 years

. Office equipment 3 — 10 years
and others
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B YU B o M

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

(2)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as

operating leases.
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1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(2)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 1(e). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce
an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fk B YU 5 o M

1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss
in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
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1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss of trade and other current receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where
the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.
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1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an
impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:
- property, plant and equipment;
- lease prepayment; and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h)

(@

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with TAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

()

)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the

effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

@

(m)

(n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefit

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present

values.

Contribution to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the
relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss as
incurred, except to the extent that they are included
in the cost of inventories not yet recognised as an
expense.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will

reverse in the future.
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(0) Income tax (continued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:
o the same taxable entity; or
. different taxable entities, which,

in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 1(0)
(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the Group, under the guarantee, and
(ii) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer
has accepted the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts and goods

return.

Services income

Revenue from services rendered is
recognised in profit or loss upon the
completion of transaction.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals
are recognised as income in the accounting

period in which they are earned.

1 FEEGFTEOR )
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fm :

i)

(ii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted
investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed
investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using the effective interest method.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as revenue
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are
initially recognised as deferred income and
subsequently recognised as other revenue
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
assets.

1

kB U B A M R
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(q)

W i e 5 ()

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the

exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Borrowing costs (continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the
group’s parent.

ok B U B 3 M R
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1

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the group if any of

the following conditions applies:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

The entity and the group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the group or an

entity related to the group.

1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

®

(u)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vii)) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

1

kB U B A M R

FEEFEBOR )

®

(u)

By (4F)
by (A

(vi)  EHR @R P A
o 12 i L[] £ ) o

(vil)  (a)() N BTk Al N ¥
EHMAE B R
% (SR
Z2HRNE) 2 EEE
HMAE-

Fo— N2 0B R 8 B 45 TR
HHEST H B RN LR
FN LR BA R KB A

g Rk

R oyl e B B R v B 2 A
SR IE H B w EE MR T A
B ATEUE BN B U IR ) B R
i AR S T AN [7) SE 5 B LA, B 2 3R
B2 S5 A R R

LR B B M = o BR IR 20 W ELA A
Bk -2 56 37 A e B TE i B R S
B R E TR R R U SO
T~ AR G B b AR R A B 2 T
LRSS 2 DT AL
S 45 8 TR R O WS AT
o A ) JF E R 2 KEAE A AR N 2R
PF & B Ry AR AR AT &
o




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 % §8 25 ¥ it PR 2 w6

Annual Report 2011 4F#i

Changes in accounting policies

The TASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

. IAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures
. Improvements to IFRSs (2010)
. IFRIC 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments

o Amendments to IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction — Prepayments of
a minimum funding requirement

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

The amendments to IFRIC 14 and IFRIC 19 have not yet
had a material impact on the Group’s financial statements
as these changes will first be effective as and when the
Group enters a relevant transaction (for example, a defined
benefit plan or debt for equity swap).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

IAS 24 (revised 2009) simplifies the definition of
“related party” and removes inconsistencies, which
emphasises a symmetrical view of related party
transactions. The revised standard also provides
limited relief from disclosure of information
by government-related entities in respect of
transactions with the government to which the
Group is related, or transactions with other entities
related to the same government. These amendments
have had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Improvements to IFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
Group’s financial instruments have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements. These
amendments do not have any material impact on the
classification, recognition and measurements of the
amounts recognised in the financial statements in

the current and previous periods.
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Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of aluminium profiles.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to
customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes or other
sales taxes and is after allowance for goods returned and
deduction of any trade discounts. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover
during the year is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2011 2010
S
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANREEF N RIET T

Manufacture and sale of aluminium R N B SR AU
profiles 2,918,719 2,169,537

Manufacture and sale of aluminium B T B 6 SR A

panels, moulds and spare parts B T A 147,250 131,776
Provision of processing services P2 AL TR 1,481 4,436
3,067,450 2,305,749

The Group’s customer base is diversified and does not
include any individual customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover.

Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 11 to these financial statements.
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kB U B A M R

Other revenue and other net loss 4 b g B B ih s 18 5 B
2011 2010
R TR AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Fi NR W+
Other revenue oAb i £
Interest income FE A 4,320 3,274
Government grants (i) R H B (1)
— Unconditional subsidies — S AR A A 661 2,252
— Conditional subsidies — A7 W0 A Al 8,362 1,249
Rental income 4 A = 28
13,343 6,803
Other net loss H b s 45 5 A
Net realised and unrealised itk & m T HC 28 K&
gains/(losses) on derivative FEH I (BHER)
financial instruments ekl
— aluminium future contracts — i E A (3,217) (1,519)
— forward foreign exchange contracts — S A 4 520 (437)
Loss on disposal of property, Y- WE K&
plant and Equipment %A e 4R (970) -
Foreign exchange losses A BE Jis 15 (832) (333)
Others HoAth, 529 487
(3,970) (1,802)
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4

5

Other revenue and other net loss (continued) 4

L fth W 5 Be 3L A s 48 R A a9

6 Government grants in form of cash subsidies i) A A5 B4 5 T b 7 ISR A B T
were received from several bureaus of the local i 3L 4l R o
government.
The receipt of certain government grants amounted A A BT AT 2 # T BUM R RGN R
to RMB661,000 this year (2010: RMB2,252,000) 661,000 ( & —F 4 AR
was unconditional. The purpose of grants was to 2,252,0007%) J7 MEAe 10 4% th o Al B
subsidy the cost of certain research projects on A Sl AR B [ AR R A T 6 A
aluminium profiles incurred during the year. WFIE I H 7 A 2 LA
The entitlement of the remaining government E2 e R 7 S S NG AN
grants, RMB133,990,000 (2010:RMB85,249,000), 133,990,0007C ( & —F4E: N RH
was conditional and recorded as deferred income 85,249,0007C ) T3 A o A1 4% > A
(Note 24). The grants were to subsidy the FyIRIEUT AR (P 5E24) o %% 4
acquisition of assets for new production plants St T /% Al G A TR DA
in Henan, Jiangxi and Sichuan provinces in the ERTINTR AR DS NIE N F 5
PRC. The government grants are amortised over e W o BEUURT Al U 4 AR B R 2
the useful lives of the related assets, ranging from AR (102204 ) #E6
10 to 20 years, and the amount charged to income wEE - F—-—%+_H=1+—H
statement for the year ended 31 December 2011 AR BE A Wi o R ANBR 2 BB A AR
was RMB8,362,000 (2010: RMB1,249,000). #8,362,0007C ( =% —F4F: AR
#1,249,0007C) °
Profit before taxation 5 BRBLHT A
(a)  Finance costs: (a) BB RLA :
2011 2010
SR & E T
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR T N RHFT T

Interest expenses on bank loans  #RAT 8 22 F 5 B 3¢
Finance charges on obligations Al FH B AR 2 W
under finance lease

Total borrowing costs B LA H A

Less: interest expenses capitalised ¥ : 7£ @ LR 2 Fl 5
into construction in B G AL
progress®

* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a
rate of 5.0445% to 6.900% (2010: 4.655% to
5.081%) per annum.

102,741 57,112
1,836 2,704
104,577 59,816
(26,206) (22,991)
78,371 36,825

* 1E B B LA F 55,0445 F
6.900/# (3 —F4F 4,655
F5.081/F) FLIEAT -
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Profit before taxation (continued)

(b)

(0

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U B 3 M R

5  BRBiwTERA )

Staff costs: (b) B IEA:
2011 2010
TR R A
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥TFx AR ¥ET T
Salaries, wages and other W~ LE R A A A
benefits 134,801 81,838
Contributions to defined I] S AR AR I AL 3K
contribution retirement plan 11,384 6,911
146,185 88,749
Other items: (c) HAbIEH :
2011 2010
I S —E-F4E
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥ T NR¥F T
Depreciation (i) i 10))
— assets held under finance — DI E SR 2
leases E 8,964 8,964
— other assets — HAth & 51,140 41,801
Amortisation of lease TEAT AR & #E8H)
prepayments (7) 8,341 7,557
Research and development F 5% AR (i)
costs (if) 4,223 3,596
Increase in inventory provisions 17 414 = 1,100
Impairment losses on trade and 32 G J A JE K T (L
other receivables (note 18) W15 (MaE18) 460 277
Auditors’ remuneration 727 S i 7 <2
— audit services — N R A 1,268 1,184
— other services — Al IR S 480 751
Cost of inventories (i) 17 B () 2,813,498 2,071,700
Operating lease charges: (i) KWEME 1)
— plants and machineries — W Rk A - 389
— properties —W 3 819 3,754
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5

Profit before taxation (continued)

()

Other items: (continued)

()

(i1)

Cost of inventories for the year ended 31
December 2011 includes RMB151,352,000
(2010: RMB106,068,000) relating to
depreciation, amortisation expenses,
operating lease charges and staff costs,
which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed
separately above or in Note 5(b) for each of

these types of expenses.

Research and development costs include
RMB3,538,000 (2010: RMB2,686,000)
relating to staff costs of employees which
amount is also included in total staff costs

6 Income tax expenses

B B i v A (a2)
(© LA : ()

(i) HE_ZT——F 1+ A
=t—HIEFE FER
AL W R A R B B
TS KRB T AR
mM A AR 151,352,000
(= F-FAF AR
106,068,0007T) > 5% 4 #H IR
R A b S RES(b) 4 B
Wk 5% 1% 25 R B SRR -

(i) WMHBRALFTEEEZAET
AR N R H3,538,0000C (.
F— A4 N R #2,686,000
J6) o W% A IR E R A KRR

as disclosed in Note 5(b). 5(b) 4 5% 2 B TR AS H%H
6 g Bl
(a)  Income tax expenses in the consolidated income (a) TEHAWBERZIEHME LS :
statement represent:
2011 2010
R TR LA
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥FL AR WT o
Current tax R 391 856 I
Provision for PRC corporate o B A 2 BT 13 B 43
income tax 16,001 18,987
Provision for Hong Kong B s W15 BL AR
Profits Tax 1,040 708
17,041 19,695
Deferred tax R Y Bt I
Origination and reversal of Bk R 22 B 2 2 A % H3 1o
temporary differences (13,465) (9,651)
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6 Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

Income tax expenses in the consolidated income

statement represent: (continued)

()

(i1)

(iii)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, respectively.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are liable to PRC
corporate income tax as follows:

. Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Xingfa”) is a
wholly foreign owned enterprise
and the prevailing tax rate of
Guangdong Xingfa in 2011 is 25%
(2010: 25%). Guangdong Xingfa
was entitled to tax concessions
whereby the profit for the first two
financial years beginning with the
first profit-making year is exempted
from corporate income tax in the
PRC and the profit for each of the
subsequent three years is taxed at
50% of the prevailing tax rate set
by the local authority. 2006 was
the entity’s first profit making year.
In addition, Guangdong Xingfa is
qualified as an “Advanced and New
Technology Enterprise” and entitled
to the preferential income tax rate
of 15% from 2009 to 2011. The
corporate income tax rate applicable
to Guangdong Xingfa was 15% for
2011 (2010: 12.5%).

kB U B A M R
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B (T3 )i B w55 1) KL
Lo WA - A S 1 0 ZE A4 B
Ty B o ORI 2 AT
] By 1984

i) ®WME_ZF——HF+_HA
= H R HB RS
B T Al 5 HE SR B U R L
16.5% 1 % 5 45 15 4

(i) AR HE P B T 15 BRI K
5] > A< 45 18 2 v [ A )
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6

Income tax expenses (continued)

(a)

Income tax expenses in the consolidated income

statement represent: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

. All other PRC subsidiaries of
the Group are limited liability
companies established under the
laws of the PRC and are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Guangdong
Xingfa. They are liable to the PRC
corporate income tax at a rate of
25% for 2011 (2010: 25%).

Pursuant to the New Tax Law in the
PRC, from 1 January 2008, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or
place of business in the PRC or which have
an establishment or place of business in
the PRC but whose relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment
or a place of business in the PRC, will
be subject to withholding tax at the rate
of 10% (unless reduced by tax treaty) on
various types of passive income such as
dividends derived from sources within the
PRC. As Guangdong Xingfa is held by a
Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary, a rate
of 5% is applicable to the calculation of this
withholding tax.

As Guangdong Xingfa is wholly owned
by the Company, the Company can control
the payments of dividends of Guangdong
Xingfa and the Company’s directors have
confirmed that it is unlikely that Guangdong
Xingfa will pay dividends in connection

with the profits generated after 1 January
2008 in the foreseeable future.

6

P 15 BE B 52 ()
() AR AR 32 B 1B 30 ¢
(##)

(iii) (##)

(iv)

. A [ Jor A A
P i) VNEIDEE T L
B S 2 A R
Al o 3lf7 A R R L
2 G Mg A A o 1
AN F— — &
5% Wi F (ZF—
FEE25%) B
B 4> 2 Jir £5 i o

R FEHBLE B EE
JNAE— A — B 78 B 55
NESFSA- T S Y
Hfl A B BE A B ST RS - 15
Jr R HAS 2 A BRSO B AE
FP I S5 A T R R~ 3 Tl
MR L YRR
S S 2 B B B U A (I
R E BN 2 R 2 10%
B 2R Bk IE 4 B 0 o W
o) SR TE AR B o R R R
LSy — [ A s AT
2 W A m R A RS G
TERBIEH 2 BLR A5% -

P A JB R B % o AR R A
BEA > HOAS 2 F) BE A0 E 1
FCHLEEIR AT BE - HA T
45 CURE RS R AT B I AR
SR A K AT BRI %
TNFE—H — AR E A Z i
A S AT IS, -
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kB U B A M R

Income tax expenses (continued) 6 i BiH Y )
Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) F52 30 B R T 2 0 49 B0 B S B
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: il i ) R
2011 2010
R TR
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR¥Fix NER¥T T
Profit before income tax I e 15 Bt i i A 18,388 82,927
Notional tax on profit before 2 A R ) 125 HE IR 78
taxation, calculated at the rates B R 2 BRBLRT
applicable to the jurisdiction T Fll 2 44 FBLIH
concerned 6,144 21,836
Tax effect of non-deductible ASET 0B BA 57 2 B s S 2
expenses 1,586 1,928
Effect of tax concession BB 18 L f (4,154) (13,720)
Income tax expenses A5 A B 32 3,576 10,044
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7

Directors’ remuneration

Details of directors’ remuneration of the Group are as

follows:

7 #HEME

LS SUE RS

Salary,
allowance
and benefits

2011
=

Contribution
to retirement

Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus Total
EEARE B A A
e REDHE At 3 % fEAL At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANRWTL ARWTZ ARWTZ ARWTZ ARWTH
Executive directors WiTES
Mr Liu Libin (appointed on 83 @® 584
8 September 2011) (R_F——#
AN REZL) 178 - - - 178
Mr LUO Su St 768 188 - - 956
Mr LUO Riming A WEE 670 189 10 = 869
Mr LIAO Yuging BEELA 571 189 10 = 770
Mr LAW Yung Koon b e 557 - 11 = 568
Mr WANG Zhihua EEERE 410 86 7 - 503
Mr DAI Feng (appointed on (% 5C/E
8 September 2011) (R=F——4
JANHEZLT) 79 - - - 79
Non-executive directors kG ESR
Mr WONG Siu Ki IR 496 - - - 496
Mr CHEN Shengguan WS E B4
(appointed on 8 September (RoF——4
2011) AANREZLT) - - - - -
Independent B kAT R
non-executive directors
Mr CHEN Mo BB L 118 - - - 118
Mr HO Kwan Yiu il 22t 118 - - - 118
Mr LAM Ying Hung, Andy ~ MRIEMEJEE 148 - - - 148
Total it 4,113 652 38 - 4,803




Annual Report 2011 4 #it

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 882 e A R 2 vl

103

7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ remuneration (continued)

kB U B A M R

7 #HFEME @)

2010
“FF
Salary,
allowance  Contribution

and benefits  to retirement

Fees inkind  benefit plan Bonus Total
B BARAEF
e REWAE AT i Bt
RMB000  RMB 000 RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB 000
ARETE ARETLE ARETLT ARETLT ARETL
Executive directors UiEH
Mr LUO Su 3 S 780 121 - 50 951
Mr LUO Riming AW 680 126 8 - 814
Mr LIAO Yuging BB e 580 125 8 - 713
Mr LAW Yung Koon AR e 501 - 10 - 511
Mr WANG Zhihua RV 416 88 5 8 517
Non-executive directors JE#117# %
Mr WONG Siu Ki ke
(appointed on (RZF—%4
21 April 2010) WH—-+—H
HEZAE) 613 - 10 - 623
Independent non-executive % . I 147 & 3¢
directors
Mr CHEN Mo B A 120 - - - 120
Mr HO Kwan Yiu i 7 32 e 4 120 - - - 120
Mr LAM Ying Hung, Andy #3854 150 - - - 150
Total M5t 3,960 460 41 58 4519

An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the number of

R SN T T < R A 0 P < 0 AT

directors and remuneration range is as follows: Ik
2011 2010
e e
Number of Number of
directors directors
HFN Y HENE

Nil to Hong Kong Dollars % %1,000,000% ¢

(“HKD”) 1,000,000 (Msol) 12 9
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Senior management remuneration

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, all are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7 during
the year (2010: five).

Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMBS5,772,000 (2010:
RMB5,088,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s loss
for the year:

AR BN B

HAREHFMA L 2 HEFR K
SF AR BRI B A B RE T BB (—F %
FIA) .

AR o Vi) R A P SR A ¥ A

AN A RE I R A A5 A i R AL 5 1R
N B H55,772,00000 ( & — T4 AR
5,088,0000C) » B\ A AR A Al 2 BAHS # &
o 3 o

bl B BB AR 2N F AR R IR B IR IT

2011 2010
I S R -FAE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARWF AR BT
Amount of consolidated loss attributable — §A 4% 23 ] B4 1 #t 26 i 3
to equity shareholders dealt with in HE 25 1B R AL 55 6
the Company’s financial statements i 48 4 #H (5,772) (5,088)
Final dividends from subsidiaries b — AU B N A REAG 2
attributable to the profits of the i oG > ) R A A S
previous financial year, approved and A A TR HEHE TR A
paid during the year - -
Company’s loss for the year AN A 2 A 4R
(Note 26(a)) (Htit26(a)) (5,772) (5,088)
Earnings per share 10 ®EZEM

The calculation of basic earnings per share during the
year ended 31 December 2011 was based on the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB14,812,000 (2010: RMB72,883,000) and the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2011 of 418,000,000 (2010:
418,000,000).

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, and
therefore, the diluted earnings per share are the same as the

basic earnings per share.

BE_Z——H+_A=+—HIL&EEF
B B A R AR R AR N R 25 B R
JRE A 5 )N S 014,812,0007C ( % — %
£ NR#72,883,00000) K#EE —F——
T AZt—HILEFED BTGB
Jin HE 7 24 $418,000,000/1% ( % —E4F
418,000,000/% ) 515

WE-B—— R BT S
S H LA L BT B
LI - O B B I A
G
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Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by product lines. In a

manner consistent with the way in which information is

reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive

management for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the Group has presented the

following two reportable segments.

Industrial aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells plain aluminium profiles,
mainly for industrial usage.

Construction aluminium profiles: this segment
manufactures and sells construction aluminium
profiles, including anodic oxidation aluminium
profiles, electrophoresis coating aluminium
profiles, powder coating aluminium profiles and
PVDF coating aluminium profiles. Construction
aluminium profiles are widely used in architecture
decoration.

All other segments include the provision of processing

services and manufacture and sale of aluminium panels,

moulds and spare parts.

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments. However, assistance
provided by one segment to another, including
sharing of assets and technical know-how, is not
measured.

11

kB U B A M R

g B e A

AN AR T 42 1 E 0 A B LSS o g B 1) AR 4
P v AT A HEN B R DA T U
o0 B B BT AS 2 R — S T A AR
B C 20K 5 AR AT e

e R ¢ R R S A
TR R TR & -

HAER A % R B
SEER BB > B FE P b S A B R B
T Uk U 2 A AR A~ Ry A W R g A
K PVDFEE 4 57 7 £F o 78 58 58 7 4
JEE 7 A A A -

Jr A7 oAt 5 ¥ B0 45 B H i IR B B R %
S B - L e AR A o

(a)

oy ERE A B K R

70 VA8 A AT A S 2 S T 9 4 i
M AR RS AT ERAS®
He LA M B 222 AT R A 20 VS
EES

e B P ST 5% 2% 5 0T
2 518 T 5 5 T 2 A S
504 M 7T 4 o B
A 2 SO DA 3 4 1 % AR A 4 -
KT » 40 6 1 33— WA
B (45 36 ) 6 7 S A )
S 5 1 o
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Segment reporting (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit. The Group’s senior executive
management is provided with segment information
concerning segment revenue and profit. Segment
assets and liabilities are not reported to the Group’s
senior executive management regularly.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 is
set out below:

Industrial

aluminium profiles

TREAM

2011 2010
“F CF-E
RMB 000

RMB’000

11 #E o)
(a) A ERMEEN-EWERAW ()

FRA it 3 v M 2 Tt 05 U B
A o A S I o AR BAT A BN R
B B 23 BB AR K s A 2 o A
ko o WA E R AR I E B e A
R AT E BN B R -

MEE =T — R T
+ A=+ HILEE 2GS
Koy FR AR AR AN 5 o ) 4 4 1 0
EEATE RN B A B AL

AT R ORI AN
Construction
aluminium profiles All other segments Total
BERA M iy S At
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
SEE CRRE CFof CRRF SRk C3%E
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB 000

ARBTR ARWTT ARBTZ ARKTT ARNTTZ ARWTT ARKTTZ ARETT

Reportable segment revenue 8 3 2 i

Revenue from external KESNREF Z i
customers 850,463 503,641 2,068,256 1,665,897 148,731 136211 3,067450  2.305,749
Reportable segment profit it 4 Hi Al
Gross profit M 78917 70,111 141,942 140,638 33,093 23,300 253952 234,049
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kB U B A M R

Segment reporting (continued) 11 2 aB s (a)
Reconciliations of reportable segment profit (b) CIE: S g Ny P <
2011 2010
—E -4 —E-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N RWET T
Reportable segment profit KERERSIREFZ
derived from the Group’s AT 3 15 43 8 ik )
external customers 253,952 234,049
Other revenue H Al 25 13,343 6,803
Other net loss At s 18 75 A (3,970) (1,802)
Distribution costs o3 85 A (47,075) (35,920)
Administrative expenses T BB 2 (119,491) (83,378)
Finance costs B A (78,371) (36,825)
Consolidated profit before W A% il % i )
taxation 18,388 82,927

()

Geographic information

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as

well as analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of

segment assets and additions to property, plant and

equipment by geographical market has not been

presented as over 90% of the turnover are generated

from the PRC market.

(c) &R

7 48 52 %71 A A ) o I 35 040 2
CE X WE S IV N T
Y M (B RO B 2 R Bk
5 2 50 > JEUIH B i8190% 2 4 2E R
Hyofe [ o B T o
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12 Property, plant and equipment 12 W3-~ Wb Bkt
(a) The Group (a) A4
Office
Plant and Motor  equipment Construction
Buildings  machinery Vehicles  and others  in progress Total
WA =R
S YT T ik R TERITR At
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ANRBFE ARBFL ARNTL ARWTFLT ARFFT ARKFIL

Cost: AR
At I January 2010 RoF -

—H—H 132,097 397,467 11,091 19,958 148,278 708,891
Additions RE 1,085 3,871 5419 18,401 466,891 495,667
Transfer from construction  ## /£ & TH#

in progress 119,595 187,589 - - (307,184) -

At 31 December 2010 e

+ZA=+—H 252,777 588,927 16,510 38,359 307,985 1,204,558
At I January 2011 RoF——4

—H—H 252,777 588,927 16,510 38,359 307,985 1,204,558
Additions RE 4,895 23,479 5,208 28,636 355,457 417,675
Transfer from construction  ## H /£ # TH#

in progress 148,327 77,978 - - (226,305) -

Disposal & - (10,007) (585) (68) - (10,660)
At 31 December 2011 HoF——4

+ZA=+—H 405,999 680,377 21,133 66,927 437,137 1,611,573
Accumulated depreciation: 2 & %
At 1 January 2010 RZE R

—H—H (6,064) (163,346) (3,650) (4,007) - (177,067)
Charge for the year ARARJE 3 (6,909) (36,589) (1,980) (5,287) - (50,765)
At 31 December 2010 e

tZA=+—H (12,973) (199,935) (5,630) (9,294) - (227,832)
At [ January 2011 RZF——4

—H—H (12,973) (199,935) (5,630) (9,294) - (227,832)
Charge for the year AR (6,256) (41,184) (3,168) (9,496) - (60,104)
Reversal of disposal | - 7,429 363 17 - 7,809
At 31 December 2011 =% ——4

tZHA=+—0 (19,229) (233,690) (8,435) (18,773) - (280,127)
Net book value: U T £
At 31 December 2011 BoF——4

+ZA=+—H 386,770 446,687 12,698 48,154 437,137 1,331,446
At 31 December 2010 RZF—FH

+ZA=+—H 239,804 388,992 10,880 29,065 307,985 976,726
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 12 ¥ Wb Lk ca)
(b)  The Company (b) AL

Office equipment and others

2 55 e O
2011 2010
SEE CFEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt NBR¥T T

Cost: BRAK

At 1 January w—H—H 533 516
Additions AN - 17
At 31 December Bt =ZA=+—H 533 533
Accumulated depreciation: Bt .

At 1 January w—H—H 309 207
Charge for the year A S 97 102
At 31 December Bt =ZA=+—H 406 309
Net book value: IR THI VA

At 31 December wt+—-H=+—H 127 224
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12 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b)

The Company (continued)

()

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

All properties owned by the Group are
located in the PRC.

Up to the date of this report, the Group is in
process of applying for the title certificates
of certain properties with carrying value of
approximately RMB150,400,000 as at 31
December 2011 (2010: RMB155,906,000).

Certain plants with net book value of
RMB20,155,000 (2010: RMB25,689,000)
were pledged as securities of bank loans of
the Group as at 31 December 2011. (Note
22(b))

The Group had entered into a finance
lease contract on 25 December 2009 for
certain production equipment for a period
of three years. At the end of the lease term,
the Group has the option to purchase the
equipment at a price deemed to be a bargain
purchase option.

At the end of the reporting period, the net
book value of machinery held under finance
lease of the Group was RMB69,141,000
(2010: RMB78,105,000).

12

Wk R Bt )
(b) AT (4)

() AEEEEA K2 YA
i o

(i)  EEARE H W ALEIE
RN _F——F+_H
=t —HZIRmEEAHANR
#150,400,0007C ( — % — %
o N R ¥8155,906,0007C)

Z A T W 3 R e B S HE
é‘géo

iy W _F— — 44+ = A
= H RWE (S AR
20,155,00070 ( & —&A4F
N #25,689,00000) 2 %7 T
TR C AR AR 2 A 4 [ 4R AT
TR ZAER o (B ZE22(b))

(iv) AEERERIET A
T H R T A A R T
SLAVEHE S K A=A
A B W& % AR
[e5] T ISR e Wl A A 1 B
1 2 A R A

PR E R AL ERE
HEN A2 HE 2R
F A N R#69,141,000
T F-FFE: NR¥
78,105,0007T) ©
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13 Lease prepayments 13 FEATH %
The Group
A M
2011 2010
I S D R R
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR TIT ANRW T

Cost: BAR :

At 1 January w—H—H 391,938 300,215

Additions DA 8,379 91,723

At 31 December =A==+ —H 400317 391,938

Accumulated amortisation: L ig 3

At 1 January w—H—H (12,019) (4,462)

Charge for the year AAE ST (8,341) (7,557)

At 31 December Rt=ZA=t—-8 (20,3600 (12,019

Carrying amount: YR A <

At 31 December wr+ZHA=+—H 379,957 379,919

(i) The Group’s interest in leasehold land is (i) AR T R T MR 25 45 St T (s
represented by the prepayments of land use right I HRE T 155 1) e I A R LA A L B K
premiums to the PRC authorities. The leasehold TH o 37 G T & 1 M7 7 R B o A 4R
lands are located in the PRC. The Group is granted [ 57 B HH404F S04 AN 2519 1 3t
land use rights for a period of 40 to 50 years. 1 FA R o

(ii)  The lease prepayments with carrying value of ) WM EFE——F+_A=t+—H E
RMB235,415,000 (2010: RMB291,955,000) was T {8 25 A R %235,415,00000 (%
pledged as securities of bank loans of the Group as —FA AR H291,955,00070) Z
at 31 December 2011 (Note 22(b)). AR RE AR 1 B A

SRATE K VG (M 7E22(b)) -
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14 Investment in subsidiaries

14

W Fi e 2 Rl 2 BB

The Company

A2 H]
2011 2010
TR R R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TFx AR ¥F L
Unlisted shares, at cost JE b By o 4 LA 626,654 626,654

Details of subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

REFE-—F A=t H o ARREZ

2011 are set out below: B JBg 2 ml R A 0
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Attributable
Name of company establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
At L, C#ITR
kA J o o B K H MREAR A8 ¢ A i FEEH
Direct Indirect
H# fhl %
% %
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited BVI United States 100% - Investment holding
(“Xingfa BVI”) 2 October 2007 Dollars
(“USD”) 1,000
China Xingfa (BVI) Limited FE RS 1,0003 7t BEER
(I Xingfa BVI ) “EERLETAZH (M%)
Xingfa Aluminium (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1,000 - 100%  Sales of aluminium
Limited (“Xingfa Hong Kong”) 14 April 2008 profiles
B (i) IR ) B 1,000 G &SRR
(THEERE]) “ERENE
WA+MA
Guangdong Xingfa PRC RMB360,040,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
Aluminium Co., Ltd. 26 May 2006 sales of aluminium
& R 8 2 BR A ()i profiles
TG R BB 5 2K A RN R ) i) I N He 7 K B
“EERF 360,040,0007C

HAZ+AH
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Investment in subsidiaries (continued) 14 RMEARZHEE w)
Place and
date of Issued and
incorporation/ fully paid up Attributable
Name of company establishment capital equity interest Principal activities
Akt ar C#fTk
TR PR3 3 B R F ) BRBEA B At A i FEEH
Direct Indirect
H#& Il #
% %

Xingfa Aluminium (Chengdu) PRC RMB 100,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
Co., Ltd 7 July 2009 sales of aluminium
SRS E (AR ) A R W) ()iir) profiles

BB ARE () AR @)ai) R NS e T SR R

“EFNFELALH 100,000,0007C

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB 50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Jiangxi) Co., Ltd. 14 August 2009 sales of aluminium
JERELE SR (VL) HIRATR profiles
(i)(iit) (“Xingfa Jiangxi”)

B SR BLgE 3 2 (TL7Y) i NS e T8 S R
HIRA A @) (TEETE])  ZFFFEAA I 50,000,0007C

Guangdong Xingfa Aluminium PRC RMB 50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and
(Henan) Co., Ltd. 10 May 2010 sales of aluminium
JE B SR (R ) A IRA T profiles
(1)(iii)

B SR g 52 (T ) i NS e T SR R
AR F ) i) ZE-FERLA A 50,000,0007¢

i) The English translation of the Company names @) AR BB F R EMR S 3%

is for reference only. The official names of these S5y m) 2 AE A4 W A A
companies are in Chinese.

(i)  The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned () AR AIIEEE S

enterprise.

(ili)  The subsidiaries are limited liability companies. (iii) FZEMIE AT A RITEAF -
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15 Trading securities 15 B
The Group
ALEH
2011 2010
R I e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR ¥F L
Investment funds WEHEE
— unlisted but quoted — 3 LR A i E 1,005 -

The fair values are determined based on quoted prices by
financial institutions which are publicly available.

16 Inventories 16

(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

PARRIEDELIE S L 3 AL PN /A [ 4]
1M 8 5E o

R

(a) REGMBERIRNZEZEEE:

The Group
A 4
2011 2010
R SE R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T L AR HET o

Raw materials JELE
Work in progress TE R
Finished goods B

195,426 261,675
57,842 34,083
135,849 97,776

389,117 393,534
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16 Inventories (continued) 16 18 (4w
(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) HERABHXEFIABBZHEEEM
recognised as an expense and included in profit AMWMTE
or loss is as follows:
The Group
AL
2011 2010
= eSS 24
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Fx ANR T
Carrying amount of B AR E
inventories sold 2,306,218 1,780,506
Write-down of inventories AT - 1,100
2,306,218 1,781,606
17 Derivative financial instruments 17 WMAEEMmTH
The Group
A
2011 2010
SE e e
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
% £ B AR
Aluminium futures contracts BHEAY - (5,117) 1,324 -
Forward foreign exchange 5 S A A 4
contracts - - - (520)
- (5,117) 1,324 (520)
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17 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 17

(a) Aluminium future contracts (a) E R g )

A 4 [ o O B A A A A BE
58 06 BBl 1) T 45 SRR o A AR B 4
15 e B 7T 5 D B ) IBCORE S B RE
27(e) e MR EMAR KT HZLAEE
98 (8 S A B 2 2 T

The Group uses commodity futures contracts
to mitigate its market risk of aluminium price
fluctuation. The Group’s policy on the mitigation
of market risk of aluminium price fluctuation is
set out in Note 27(e). The notional contract value
outstanding at the end of the reporting period and
the related terms are summarised as below:

The Group
A 4

2011 2010
S e
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AT T

Purchase contracts RS H
Volume (tonne) e () 3,405 3,820
Market value {H 54,108 63,681
Notional contract value HEAHMEE 59,225 62,357
Fair value N FE (5,117) 1,324
Contract maturity date GHEMA January to January to
August 2012 September 2011
S A
—H&ENA —H=EILA

BB A 29T (8 DAR S HA R Tl 15 R 1
e R —— 4 H = —
H A TEHENFEMHESH
KEHWFFAERFHES AR
5,117,00000 ( % — T4 R g Bl
FA 4t 2 N R ¥1,324,00000) >
T 23 1 {5 5 B i 48 25 Hh iR -

The market value of futures contracts is based on
quoted market price at the end of the reporting
period. The net unrealised holding losses on the
futures contracts remeasured at fair value was
RMB5,117,000 as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
unrealised holding gain of RMB1,324,000) and the
changes in the fair value were recognised in profit
or loss.
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17 Derivative financial instruments (continued)

kB U B A M R

17 M4 H )

(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts (b) WA EE A 4
The Group has entered into forward foreign A 45 B T RT ST A AR G 4 4% fif A1
exchange contracts to mitigate its market risk of FE 38t Bl 119 7 055 Ja By - 5% %% T HL 8 A
foreign exchange fluctuation. These instruments are DA i 458 B A 2 1 A B S T 3 A
used solely to mitigate the market risk associated B o i I P AR R AR A
with the Group’s liabilities and not for trading or
speculation purposes.
No forward foreign exchange contract was e A B R e £ 2
outstanding as at 31 December 2011. KB ZEWSMNES 4 -
The notional contract value outstanding at the end PHREMRRFEZZEEGHOEME
of the reporting period and the related terms are T AH B A kAR 2 G
summarised as below:
The Group
AEM
2011 2010
“F “FEE
Weighted Notional Weighted Notional
average amounts at average amounts at
contracted original Fair values contracted original Fair values
rates currency rates currency
R B kA &
i at Sy T4 At
gk HEEH BFE GROES AEEH AFE
(’000) RMB’000 (000) RMB 000
(Fr) ARETE (F)  ARBTE
Sell RMB/Buy USD HUARE/BAET
3months to 6 months  =fA I EAM N - - - 6.5368 2,036 (520)
- (520)

The above derivatives are measured at fair value
based on the valuation provided by the banks at 31
December 2010. The net unrealised holding losses
on the forward contracts remeasured at fair value
was RMB520,000 as at 31 December 2010.

LHATE TRMR ZF—%F+ A
=t BT R AN (AR AT (1
[ R R I
CRE AR g e E iy
)R B BLES A i R0 L N R
520,0007C °
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18

Trade and other receivables

18 22 5 B B A i Wi ask JH

The Group The Company
A&EMW A2 H
2011 2010 2011 2010
ZEF-—F —ZZ-FHE ZF-—H ZZ-IF
RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB 000
ANREFL ANEWFTr AREFTZ ANR¥ETFIL
Trade receivables 28 5 ME W 7R 504,517 382,667 = -
Bills receivable JE s 22 9% 613,560 220,732 = -
1,118,077 603,399 = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries MWk Ff & 2 w] #OH = - 28,005 42,635
Other receivables, prepayments b B i 3 H ~ T8 £ FE K

and deposits Hi g 157,758 29,007 428 4,031
1,275,835 632,406 28,433 46,666

Certain trade receivables with carrying value of
RMB11,242,000 were pledged for bank loans as at 31
December 2011(2010: Nil) (Note 22(b)).

Included in trade and other receivables are amounts due
from related parties (Note 30(b)(i)). All of the trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.

W oE——Et A=t —H o RRE A
N R H511,242,00000 ( & —F ;) 2 3%
T 58 2 ME W RO B KRR A SR AT Bk 2 4

& (M #E22(b) ) -

B A ) 8 5 R I T A B B B H At BB AR
(FHFE30b)(1) ) BT 58 b B FC A B Wik

H
H

TR — 4 Wi [o] s it w0 /B S -
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis

Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts) and bills receivable with the
following aging analysis as of the end of the
reporting period. The Group generally grants the
credit period to customers ranges from 60 days to
90 days, according to the credit history of each
customer. The Group’s credit policy is set out in
Note 27(a).

18

kB U B A M R

2 5y B F At R W 3R I (4)
(a) IRE S

B8 Gy T A T WAL I 2475 52 o JE WG
FOH (F1BR % AR B (E s 1R) M
W S 9% > EL R o R 2 BR B 23 A
WF e AEEREFLES ZFE
FLERIX T & 5 2 A5 B — A F60
HZ90H o A5 M 2 {5 B BUR R

B 5E27(a)
The Group
7 45 M
2011 2010
—E——4 “E R4
RMB’000 RMB 000

AR TIT ANRH T

Current HIEE

1 to 3 months past due il — % = MA
3 to 6 months past due i = 2| H
More than 6 months past due 7 407 e A 7S A8
Amount past due i 3 4 FH

772,413 590,207
328,677 13,192
13,400 -
3,587 -
345,664 13,192

1,118,077 603,399




XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5 % §8 25 ¥ it A PR 2 w6

Annual Report 2011 4F#i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ok B U 5 o M

18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly (Note 1(h)).

The movements in the allowance for impairment

18 22 5 B 3L At FE W ask JH (49)

(b)

Tk 6L s 4R

A 1 S R R e B 4 2 el (e
R A R P AT Bk > BRI AR S (S
A 2 AT REE R K FE LA
DUR > 3ol 1 M 18 L 13 7 B o SR i %
JE WA SRR R B (M AL (h) ) e

A TRAT Bl 52 B H At B W T B

in respect of trade and other receivables during the 2 BB
year are as follows:
The Group
A 48
2011 2010
—E -4 —EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T NR¥T T
Balance at 1 January W—H—HZ 4% 1,373 1,139
Recognised CLERR 460 277
Write off i £ (293) (43)
Balance at 31 December Wt H=1+—HZ& 1,540 1,373
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kB U B A M R

Trade and other receivables (continued) 18 R 5 KA ERKIHE 4)
(b) Impairment losses (continued) (b) WAE 18 ()

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s trade
receivables of RMB487,000 (2010: RMB487,000)
was individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivable related
to a customer that was in financial difficulties
and management assessed that the receivable is
expected not to be recovered.

Based on past experience, except for the above
amounts that the customers were unable to repay
the outstanding balance, the Group believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
trade and bills receivable not past due.

Mo FE—— 4+ A =+—H &
£ M 2 48 5 E WG IE N R 487,000
JG (= F — R AR ¥487,000
J6) AR I 1 E Ay B o 725K
AT 73] 9 (L G Mgk T LA B I ) B
K F A B TR R A R R A TR A
TR TE M A AS m g el o

MR TEAE B > bR Bl % P ORAEMR
AR T AR 2 R AL EAME
Slf7 41 7R R A 8 39 22 2 i B WA T I
B W 5% 4R T AR (3 A

Pledged deposits 19 CIK#FEX
Bank deposits have been pledged to bank as securities for ST THRTER AL TRITHE
certain banking facilities (Note 22(b)) and bills payable B (MfiE22(0) ) BT EIE (M FE21) 2 AfS
(Note 21). o
Cash and cash equivalents 20 BERkBE&FED
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERBREHEEDEE:

The Group The Company

A4 H A2
2011 2010 2011 2010

SR DR RE DR DERR

RMB’000

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANRETL ARFETLT ARETE ARETT

Cash at bank and in hand 847 L FIHH & 244,222

144,926 792 921
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20 Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 20 B KkBREFEEY @)
(b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) B3 8 Wi v ] B 3 Pr A5 3 4 2 B
generated from operations: M :
2011 2010
R R A
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt 7 ANR¥Tx N RIET T
Operating activities JEE -8 571
Profit before taxation R Bt Al i £ 18,388 82,927
Adjustments for: BN B 25 TH T A
Depreciation rgg 5(c) 60,104 50,765
Amortisation 1 54 5(c) 8,341 7,557
Interest income on bank SRATAEFORLE A
deposits 4 (4,320) (3,274)
Interest expenses on SRAT B ORI S BH 52
bank loans 5(a) 78,371 36,825
Loss on disposal of WY WE K
property, plant and s A 2 ke 18
equipment 4 970 -
Unrealised net loss of fir A 4 Al T EL
derivative I 5 B s 1R VT AR
financial instruments 5,401 75
Foreign exchange loss A1 BEE 5 48 (1,206) 1,017
Waivers of liabilities FR N =R - 3,146
Changes in working BHERZET):
capital:
Change in inventories FE2ZEH 4,417 (149,324)
Change in trade and 22 5y Be F Al B i
other receivables HIAZ 5 ) (643,735) (54,682)
Change in trade and 2 5y J I A e At
other payables WIHZ 55 H) 717,515 187,671
Change in deferred IEAENT A 2 52 )
income 40,379 19,880
Cash used in operations 7 it I Bl & 284,625 182,583
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21 Trade and other payables 21 AR5 B H: At RE £ 5k JH
The Group The Company
A% H AR

2011 2010 2011 2010
ZR g ZE-FF ZF-—F _F-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB 000
ARBFL ARBETFLT ARETLZ AREFIL
Trade payables 58 5 ME A 3R 641,681 266,088 = -
Bills payable (i) JEAT 45 ) 406,010 113,210 = -
Other payables and accruals JEC R A5 0 e JRE A 2 198,413 174,686 3,647 1,662
Deferred income (Note 24) AN (B aE24) 12,142 5,302 = -
1,258,246 559,286 3,647 1,662

22 Gy T H A AR 5 TE G 35 B A5 R 28y BRIE
(B ZE30(p)(i1) ) ° T A3 38 5y B oAl JE A 3K
TE TR 0 — 4 T B AT S R 2 WA B
BRAE R o

Included in trade and other payables are amounts due
to related parties (Note 30(b)(ii)). All of the trade and
other payables are expected to be settled or recognised as
income within one year or are repayable on demand.

38y B Al JEASE 3 I 4 58 5y JE A+ I
Lo MEAT S5 4% > LA i 1R 2 Bz e 0 A 4

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and
bills payable with the following aging analysis as of the

end of the reporting period. e
The Group
A 45
2011 2010
S =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T NRWET T
Due within 1 month or on demand — & A N Y] ke R
fi 2 491,232 246,014
Due after 1 month but within 3 months  —fifl JI £ (0 = {ii 7 A %] 227,934 92,395
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =1 H £ {E 75 A A1 5] 328,525 40,889
1,047,691 379,298
) Bills payable as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 ) N EoF—— R F—FEH
were secured by pledged bank deposits as disclosed = H 2 REAS TR e B 19 BT 4

in Note 19.

e < CLHR TSR AT A7 3K 1R
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22 Loans and borrowings

(a)

(b)

Loans and borrowings were repayable as

follows:

22

Bk K B

(@ HREMBEEIYHWT :

The Group
A4
2011 2010
e e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥TT AR T IT
Within one year — A 1,061,527 706,036
After 1 year but within 2 years — R EWEN 162,780 116,000
After 2 years but within 5 years W 4F 4% {H F.4F (4 431,220 429,000
After 5 years AR 49,000 -
643,000 545,000
1,704,527 1,251,036
Terms (b) 6§ 3k
The Group
A 48
2011 2010
e B R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥ T AN RWET T
Secured bank loans A A ER AT K 1,142,337 788,482
Unsecured bank loans IR ERIT B K 562,190 462,554
1,704,527 1,251,036

The secured bank loans were secured by the

following assets of the Group as at the end of the

reporting period.

T 5 AR > A AT SR AT AR LA
EFDLT & AR




Annual Report 2011 4 #it

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 882 e A R 2 vl

125

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kB U B A M R

22 Loans and borrowings (continued) 22 BmEER )
Terms (continued) (b) WK (A4
The Group
AL
2011 2010
TR R A
RMB’000 RMB 000
ANR¥ T NRHF T
Carrying value of assets: A R I
Property, plant and equipment ERY T
(Note 12) (Mrit12) 20,155 25,689
Lease prepayments (Note 13) TARH AR 4 (M FE13) 235,415 291,955
Trade receivable (Note 18) 28 5y MEWS K IE (Mt 18) 11,242 -
Pledged deposits (Note 19) S AR AF K (K FE19) 179,718 19,268
Total R 446,530 336,912

As at 31 December 2011, Banking facilities of the
Group totalling RMB2,860,666,000 (31 December
2010: RMB2,270,344,000) were utilised to the
extent of RMB2,142,967,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB1,345,517,000).

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s utilised
banking facilities amounted to RMB251,290,000
(31 December 2010: RMB291,500,000) are
guaranteed by the related parties (Note 30(a)(iii)).

Four (2010: One) of the Group’s banking facilities
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the subsidiaries’ balance sheet ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants.
Further details of the Group’s management of

liquidity risk are set out in note 27(b).

W oF——F+_HA=+—H>
AR A 3N R #2,860,666,000
L(CE-FEF T+ H=+—H:
A R #2,270,344,0000C) 2 $R47 15
s AR %02,142,967,0007C (
F—FF+HA=+—H: AR¥
1,345,517,00070) ZE L #) H

W _F—-—F+_HA=+—H>
AEFMEFHAZRITHEEARY
251,290,0007C ( —F—F4E+ A
=+—H: AR ¥291,500,0007C)
o BE 2y W& R (M 7E30¢a)ii) ) o

ARAE U IE (R —F A —TH ) 41
1105 SEZE e 2 A BRI I 4 71 25 T
EE AR R 2L (F LR
SRR L 2 B HE) & Al
PEE - AR M3 5 3A B
PR A5 BEZE A BOR B o AR 4R
9] 5 ) e L A S R S AN o
A B A B [ 3 0 B 4 e B 2 A
A B EE27(b) o
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22 Loans and borrowings (continued)

(b)

Terms (continued)

As at 31 December 2011, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached, except for a short term bank loan of
RMB60,000,000 drawn down by Xingfa Jiangxi
as a result of the gearing ratio of Xingfa Jiangxi
was over 70% as at 31 December 2011. According
to the bank loan agreement, the short term bank
loan was repayable within one year. As a result of
non-compliance of covenants, Xingfa Jiangxi may
be requested to repay the respective bank loan on
demand.

23  Obligations under finance leases

As 31 December 2011, the Group had obligations under
finance leases repayable as follows:

22 B REE )
(b) WK ()

WoE——F+ A =1+—H"
3 & AR A B 2R BUE R 2
ALY MBS VLG R R — —4F
FoAZF—HZEEAMELRE
iw70% M $2 B A K %#60,000,000C
05 BHERAT B BR A1 o AR PR SR AT B
R > % W R AT B S R — 4T
T8 2 - TR I 324 > $RAT T EoR
I 2 VTG i B OR IR AE R AH I 2 SR AT
e

23 MEMEEMTE

BEF A=t B AREA
EEZBMEHEREMT

The Group
KEH
2011 2010
“F ok “E-RE
Present value Present value

of the minimum Total minimum of the minimum  Total minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments

i A & A b dIiENEY R %

k2 Bl E €5 WO vl A%

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB 000

ARETA  ARETZ ARETL ARETFL

Within one year —H&R 24,430 25,231 23271 25,107
After 1 year but within 2 years —AER B AR A = = 24,408 25,129
24,430 25,231 47,679 50,236

Less: total future interest expenses W R A BB (801) (2,557)
Present value of lease obligations MEETZHA 24,430 47,679
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Deferred income 24

The Group had received government grants. The
entitlement of certain government grants is conditional.
They are granted to subsidise acquisition of assets for new
production plants in Henan Province, Jiangxi Province and
Sichuan Province of the PRC. These government grants
are recorded as deferred income and are to be recognised
as income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
live of related assets. Movements of deferred income are as
follow:

kB U B A M R

3 AE A

AR [ 25 B RO A B G o 2 T IBUR A B
& T MG B o M T R A G T A
i B A AR T o S DU TR T R A UL
V7 e P T 25 B T 2 2 R B < L BURT A
B F 3 IR SE A A AR > 3 DA B SRR A
I 7 2 TR AT A R A WA o R
WA Z BB UNR

The Group
ALEH
2011 2010
—E SE R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Fi NR W+
Government grants received: T W0 BORT i B 4 -
At 1 January w—H—H 85,249 62,157
Additions NE 48,471 23,092
At 31 December Wt H=1+—H 133,990 85,249
Accumulated amortisation: ZEh e -
At 1 January w—H—H 1,249 -
Amortised during the year (Note 4(i)) EINHESE (B AF4)) 8,362 1,249
At 31 December Wt HA=1+—H 9,611 1,249
Unamortised deferred income: REESERLEUW A -
At 31 December wr=H=+—H 124,379 84,000
Less: current portion included in trade W RS 5 KA
and other payables (Note 21) JREAS B T 2 B
AR (HtaE21) (12,142) (5,302)
112,237 78,698
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25
of financial position

T & B IR DL R Z B 1 B

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) T 5 A 0 IR D8 2 9 =2 B R D
of financial position represents: i
The Group
A 4
2011 2010
I S “E-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWF AT T
At 1 January w—H—H 23,996 19,264
Provision for PRC income tax Hp [ER] BIT A5 1 A
(Note 6(a)) (Bt7t6(a)) 16,001 18,987
Provision for Hong Kong Profits 7 {5 FI| 75 B 4 ffi
Tax (Note 6(a)) (Bt 7t6(a)) 1,040 708
Income tax paid SENRREY ) (8,940) (14,963)
At 31 December mt=H=+—H 32,097 23,996
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25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 REFTMBERNENZEB
of financial position (continued) (#
(b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) CHERERBIEE E KA
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AR B A IR O 36 T B8 2 AR AT
recognised in the consolidated statement of BLIHE & (&) 4B 0 J s
financial position and the movements during the /R /(IR
year are as follows:
The Group
A
Change in
fair value Impairment Government
of derivative Impairment loss on bad grant in
financial loss on and doubtful deferred
instruments inventory debts  Tax loss (1) income Total
ik &m TR AE
THZ - P4 AR BARZ
AFHES O WAEE  HEER BEEHR) BUNHDE At
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ANRETFL AREFLC ARETLT ARETLT ARETFL AREFIL
Deferred tax arising from  Ff g 2 2 ¥ 2 Bi 16
At 1 January 2010 e S L
—H—H (88) - 105 519 15,539 16,075
Recognised in profit or loss /it 8 45 A1 Tk 72 (24) 275 133 4,291 4976 9,651
At 31 December 2010 I S 22
+-HA=1+—H (112) 275 238 4,810 20,515 25,726
At 1 January 2011 RoF——4
—H—H (112) 275 238 4,810 20,515 25,726
Recognised in profit or loss it 8 4 1A i 32 847 - 25 2,649 9,944 13,465
At 31 December 2011 RF——1F
+ZA=+—H 735 275 263 7459 30,459 39,191
i) The tax losses incurred by subsidiaries i) A R EE A R SE 2 Y R A )
incorporated in the PRC expire five years JIT IEE M 22 B T i RS E AR AR
after they are incurred. A i A
(¢)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) A T 72 9B %t B I £ i

At 31 December 2011, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB236,424,000
(2010: RMB223,344,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of RMB11,821,000 (2010: RMB11,167,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of the foreign-invested enterprise and the
directors have determined that the profits will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

AFE—-—FE+ A=+ —H>
BB AR L RS A RS
i i Al 2 BRE OB AR
236,424,0007C (= F —F 44 AR
#223,344,00070) ° & 4E Bl TH A
ANE11,821,00000 ( & —F4F
ANEH11,167,00000 ) 3f 5 7 R %
SR U R AT 2 BT T AR
JE PR o A w2 ) A1 A B A B
JBE SO > i B R E IS
A5 318 3 UK i A o
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26

(a)

Capital, reserves and dividends 26 JBEA - fil il B S
Movements in components of equity (a) RE 23 30 0 52 B
The reconciliation between the opening and AR B A R A 45 R 2 AR B AR
closing balances of each component of the Group’s A2 B IR 55 G RE 4R 52 B)
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated & o AN TR I HE £ 45 B 43 A 4
statement of changes in equity. Details of the W B AR R 2 S B sE R A R
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
The Company Y N/
Share Share Other  Exchange Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve earnings Total
Bk BehrEE R ERREE  REEN at
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB’000
AREFE ARBTL ARBTT ARBTT AREFT AREFI
At 1 January 2010 R-Z-%F—~A—H 3,731 196,160 441976 (89) 50,059 691,837
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (5,088) (5,088)
Other comprehensive loss HAb 2R - - - (152) - (152)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERTERAE - - - _(1221 o _(20_881 L (_5,%49)_
Dividends approved in respect of the REFIEZRE
previous year - - - - (13,794) (13,794)
At 31 December 2010 e S
toA=t- 3731 196,160 441,976 (41) LT 672803
At 1 January 2011 REF——F—A—H 3,731 196,160 441976 (241) 3177 672,803
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (5,772 (5,772)
Other comprehensive loss Hfb2 R - = - (42) - (42)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AT R A - - - (42) (5,772) (5,814)
Dividends approved in respect of the REFEZRE
previous year - - - - (14,630) (14,630)
At 31 December 2011 e S
+-A=+—H 3,731 196,160 441,976 (283) 10,775 652,359
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Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26  HEA ~ i 5 S B, (43)

(b)

Dividends (b)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the company attributable to the year

e
() HEFFEAEIE2 AL A I
AN B
2011 2010
e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR W T NRWT T

Final and special dividends G H MR R
proposed after the balance TRANY 2 5 JIg K2
sheet date per ordinary share Z AR BRI

i 8

A final dividend of RMBO0.035 per ordinary
share to all equity shareholders of the
Company have been proposed by the
directors and are subject to approved by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting
in 2010.

No dividend has been proposed by the
Company after 31 December 2011.

- 14,630

R AR I A AR R
JI HRUR B A M L g K
B N R H0.0357C - M 28 F5 A%
AU & — A e RO AR R
o b e -

B
I 75 3 o ek UR 8
B -
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 26  FEA ~ G5 KB (4

(b) Dividends (continued) (b)

(ii)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders

JB & ()

i)  WRERBMERIRANZS LM

of the Company attributable to the B AFJEZ WA A 4 ]
previous financial year, approved and V& YIS
paid during the year
2011 2010
R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T N RWET T
Final dividends in respect of T A TR L T S
the previous financial year, TRATZ E—1H
approved and paid during WA AR i 2 R M
the year, of RMB0.035 J 5 e 1 3K 748 M
per ordinary share (2010: A R ¥50.03570
RMB0.033). G o
A RH0.033
Jo) 14,630 13,794
(¢)  Share Capital () A
Authorised, issued and fully paid share capital A BB RHEIRA
Authorised: I -
2011 2010
gk “E-%
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
et % H B Tt 8 H BH
(’000) HKD’000 (000) HKD 000
(TH) T#7x (TH) T

Ordinary shares of HK$ 0.01 each AT (0,01 T 2 4 i 1,000,000

10,000 1,000,000 10,000
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

kB U B A M R

26 A GEfE BB (47)

(c) Share Capital (continued) (¢) WA (4F)
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid: OB {T R 52 R -
2011 2010
ZFF e S 202
No. of Nominal value of No. of Nominal value of
Shares Amount Shares Amount
it 8 H [ oA b H HESH
(’000)  HKD’000 RMB ('000)  HKD'000 RMB
equivalents equivalents
‘000 ‘000
(TR) Tt F (TH) T ¥l
ARETx NE#T
At 1 January and at R=A—HRk
31 December BE-H=1—H 418,000 4,180 B 418000 4180 3731

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account and other reserve account of
the Company are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(@) ol R R

i)

B 14 i 1

RIS RS AL AR
) 2 A7 i {5 B S JFC Al fof
MR 2 B Al 3 IR T RCOR > HE
FhE R IR H HAZ
A A e LR H R
5 it e 2 ) 2 AR o
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26

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii) Other reserve

The other reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital and the existing balance in
the share premium account of a subsidiary
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on

29 February 2008.

The other reserve of the Company
represents the difference between (a) the
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired; and (b) the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company in exchange
under the Reorganisation of the Group on

29 February 2008.

(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents waivers of

liabilities due to related parties.

26

A ~ il i B S (4
d) FEEEERS (&)
i) HA A

A AR B 2 HoAt ok 44 4 LA
H LR ()T WUE R E 2~
B 3 it B 2 PR A T (L %
BLA & 5 B (b) A 2 AR IR
i VAN Sy s oV W E
A AR A ST R AT
JBe A7 T L

AN F 2 HAb Rk 4 46 LA
TR ()T U
Rl 2 R EE R B (o)A
A TR~ NE A
o JUR AR G A A S
1M 8547 2 ey T 4

@iii) B AR

T A {5 Y e 2 AT R
AR
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Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

v)

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association
of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. The
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of their net profit, as determined under
the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to statutory general reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity
shareholders.

PRC statutory reserves can be used to
make good prior years’ losses, if any, and
may be converted into share capital by
issuing new shares to equity shareholders
proportionate to their existing percentage
of equity interests provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC.

26

kB U B A M R

A ~ il o B S, (4
d) FEEEERE (&)
(iv) %

R B i S e A T AR SR A B R
I A ) B AR S A B A 4 (1] v
1] o Jag 2 ) 22 A Ak 2 A )
ST o B 2 ) 2E g LR
5 o 1B A BN R A 1
ZHR 2B DI0%E L E—
Gl > B 5 B S
EAR 2 50% 1k o 18] 7% il
JIT A A A JE A AT IR IR T
HE 4 O 2 w1 o

H B 5 E il T AR B At
HAFE 2 E () >
R HE i BB R B AT e T
PO A B 491 16 480 55 SR AT 587 Jie 47
LA B - AT B R AT A
ZHEBARPIREEMEAZ
25% -

(v) LG
BEE 5. i 6 475 DR 40 0 o o 35

B Y S S H AR T PR 2 P
A RE 525
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26

Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(e)

®

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable reserves
of the Company as at 31 December 2011 was
RMB648,628,000 (2010: RMB669,072,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance
at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholders returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
the Group defines net debt as loans and borrowings
plus unaccrued purposed dividends, less cash and
cash equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity less

unaccrued proposed dividends.

26

J A ~ fifi fi S B B (a7)

(e)

®

T 43k 3 R o

Ro-F——F A=t —H &
2 ) 2 A o UIR ff 4 A I N RV
648,628,000 ( = F —F4F: AR
1669,072,0007C) °

EAEH

ARSI Y T B B A R B
A B I KR A KRB B RE T > SR AR
B KV 2oy E ity MRS E - 0 DA A
B A AT > LA A A
AR 3t (] i

A 4 B WA R R A B A
B > DAAE A R I8 £ 5 K A RE
At A B 1R PR (o] ik BEL AR T
R L I 2 A4 1) 48 2 e AR B 22 ] 19~
iy > SN0 A A 375 BR 0 ) W AR A AR N
HEAEAT IR % o

AR W BB AR LR B AR
ZRHE ot BE T 5 - AR 2R R O B R
5 8 2 B AR BN R wH R R R R
BB KB A Y DL B R
frak o SR B AU 2 T A
HR A A 4R R
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26 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(®

kB U B A M R

26 A GEfE BB (47)

Capital management (continued) (3] BEARBM (4)
During 2011, the Group’s strategy was to maintain I e ¥ X P 4 DET
the debt-to-equity ratio at a level considered A EE A LU AR AR R A A A B g
reasonable by the Group’s management from time REEHEERTINERNER G
to time with reference to the prevailing market TR o B 4 4 B B LR A 4R [
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, I B A R 1) RE AR R S A R
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid LRGeS £33 8-
to equity shareholders, issue new shares or raise
new debt financing.
The Group
A 42 1
2011 2010
SF o SR EE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR T N R WEF T
Current liabilities: LA
— Loans and borrowings — R R fE R 22 1,061,527 706,036
— Obligation under —RVE B EAT
finance lease 23 24,430 23,271
Non-current liabilities: IR ) B A
— Loans and borrowings — B G 22 643,000 545,000
— Obligation under —REHE ST
finance lease 23 - 24,408
Total debt B A 1,728,957 1,298,715
Add: Proposed dividends Il : @ &% %S 26(b) = 14,630
Less: Cash and cash W B R B4
equivalents EEY 20 (244,222) (144,926)
Pledged deposits [EEELIREEY 19 (194,962) (77,017)
Adjusted net debt K0 R 1,289,773 1,091,402
Total equity HE 35 A8 %H 775,407 777,413
Less: Proposed dividends ¥ : E ikt 5 26(b) = (14,630)
Adjusted capital SRR G A 775,407 762,783
Adjusted net debt-to- KRB AmEAR
capital ratio % 166 % 143%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

A ) B LR e 2 RIS 52 AR B
A B E R o
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, commodity

price and currency risks arises in the normal course of the

Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and

the financial risk management policies and practices used

by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 60 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 4% (2010: 11%) and 26% (2010: 38%) of
the total trade and other receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the plain aluminium
profiles and aluminium profiles with surface

finishing segment.

27

<o Tl JE B A B B 2 o

JRAE AL VB AR AR R B
H T AR 32 2 VBT AR AR [ 2 B SE R R AR
HHEE A o AR B BT R 52 2 % S D B A AR
) DA B 4 DL By - < e g Y BB

Lo LR 0 o
(a) fEEEEE

AR 2 A5 SR b 2k B 32 5 K
At R Wi 3 TE o L L A 2 M
B - N7 R 4 B AR % A6 M B R
T 38 5y B HoAth Ui K IELTT 5
EREEEB - CLFLHEEF
HEAT R AT B WAl o 3% 5 SR E
AR AR A B Ry 2 A5 GRS Bk
H A2 A 2R 77 > 3 2% 5 E A B &
2GR DL RS T T 2 K8
BRI o 28 5 ME WA K JEL A 85 2R H 4R
60H Z90H N E| M- — k1 7 > A&
SE NG A 1) B P S BT A 4G 0 5 o

AL TR 2 2 A5 B EE 2%
FREMEFFEEZATERHE
I M T R 2 R AR R
J¥ 4 v 2 I B A 4R R
Al % 5 A7 3 TR B 4 IR e A o
AR A > 22 b B H Al RE i 3 IE
M Z24% (ZF—FF:11%) &
26% (& —F4:38%) 4RI A
A% 4R [ T35 0 B0 b 43 0 M 46 3% T
LR v RS N & N4
;50
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the
statement of financial position after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial
guarantees given by the Company as set out in
note 29, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to
credit risk in respect of these financial guarantees
at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 29.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

kB U B A M R

27 <ol KR BE K A P AE (40

(a)

(b)

f5 S )al b (A7)

BT AR A2 2 S 5 R BE (R FE AT
o] BT R0 ) B B IR LR A
KamERE (BT Eam TR
ZIRTHAE (80 BRAT AT (B HE ) o
Bk B 5520 i ol AN B R 2 B ES A%
PRAN > A 2 B 3 4 4 (AT o] Ath 4%
£ s B A 4 B w3 A A /K 2 A
A SR B o 7 R R B R AR S
& ORBIT ZEUR A2 2 B e A 0 RV A B
FE20 Y #E o

A B A 5 il 52 ) S At JRE Wi R IR
AR Z 2 A5 Bk 2 i — 4 B Ab
& R U B RS

i B & & B

U B L A A A 2 R AT B
S35 B AT gt o A 2 L RO
T ) B B T B 7 R BT A
FEZLATA 1 DL > B R AR 8 L B 4
T o A = 2 I S AR 8 A 40 1R
B B LU ) R R B )
HamoKe
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27

Financial risk management and fair 27

values (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining

contractual maturities at the end of the reporting

period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which

are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows

(including interest payments computed using

contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates

current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

<o Tl Jo B A B B O P AHL ()

(b)  WEE R (4)

R O R A S 2 <
ARG K BFIR 95
HIRM BB SR E (% a0
ARE (AN TE B $20 HOl WOR 2 B
Fr R T B 2 R BRI RS

TSN 2 B RS

2011

“E—k

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow/(inflow)

FHAWBB RS/ (RA)

More than 1 More than 2 Balance

Within 1 year but  years but sheet

year or on less than less than ~ More than carrying

demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

—HEN K —HH% A 1% REEFH

EEk  MEER HAER ik gt I 1 £

RMB’009  RMB’000  RMB'009  RMB'090  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARBTFE ARWFZ ARWFZ AR¥FL ARWFLZ AR¥FL

Bank loans RITEH 1,112,236 199,953 487,286 54570 1,854,045 1,704,527
Finance lease liabilities MEREAR 25,231 = = = 25,231 24,430
Trade and other payables 5 BRI MM HE 1,258,246 = = - 1258246 1,258,246
2,395,713 199953 487,286 54570 3137522 2,987,203
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 ik B B R P AE am)
values (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) VB EAE (A
2010
—“Z-FF

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow/(inflow)

BHARMBRBRERL/ (HA)

More than 1~ More than 2 Balance

Within 1 year but years but sheet
year or on less than less than carrying
demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
— AR —HK A& MREEHH
Bk HmER  HEFER A5t i T {1

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB 000
ARWTIE ARKTE ARKTIE ARKTIL ARKTI

Bank loans WATEN 758,227 146,995 474580 1,379,802 1,251,036
Finance lease liabiliies [l &AL £ 4% 25,069 25,079 - 50,148 47,679
Trade and other payables 7 5 M H th FEE £+ 356 559,286 - - 559,286 559,286

1,342,582 172,074 474,580 1,989,236 1,858,001

Forward foreign i WA IE 5 4
exchange contracts
- outflow — i 13,828 - - 13,828

— inflow —HA (14,191) - - (14,191)
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(©

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from borrowings from banks. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out in (i)

below.
) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest

rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing
borrowings at the end of the reporting

27 <ol KR A BE K A P AE (40

(c)  FISREEER

AR [ 2 R AR B A B RAT
B o 51 Bl ) A L B E A A B 2
R0 1l 4 AN AR B DR 32 8L i
] 25 B B P () 3 L B o AR 4
P A LT B 6 2 M AR DL
(@) °

i)

VES /4

AR RES A A R
at B 8 2 AR

period.
The Group
AR H
2011 2010
g “F-RE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates Amount rates Amount
RS BH B S
000 ‘000
i T
Fixed rate borrowings: ER
Bank loans RATHT 5.23% - 6.94% 514,527 4.78% - 5.56% 290,000
Variable rate borrowings: TR
Finance lease liabilities MG E AR 5.215% 24430 4.54% 47,684
Bank loans RITHE 5.81% - 8.53% 1,190,000 1.29% - 6.22% 961,036
1,214,430 1,008,720
Total borrowings &M 1,728,957 1,298,720
Fixed rate borrowings as a E R EaRa R
percentage of total borrowings 30% 22%
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Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(0

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s profit
after taxation and retained profits by
approximately RMB13,485,000 (2010:
RMB21,151,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits that
would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held
by the Group at the end of the reporting
period, the impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2010.

27

kB U B A M R

<o Tl o B A B B O P AHL ()

(0

A 32 Jal B (A7)

(ii)

1R L 7T

e N e
Hofhgl Rl RBEH BT
100 = 2 > 1 H Al BT A
S5 UHE R B R BRBL TL
P B8 i AR > AR 2 i
VRS R B SN
13,485,0007C ( & — &4
NER#21,151,0005C) °

EABURE TR AL
R 0 A% ik A1) B £ B ik A1) AT g
FEE 1 2 )Ry 5 B8] o RN )
A Al e A 3 5 B S o R
(SR8 2R ARNE DGR i
AR G T T R A0
A A AR [ T B - (R
JR\ B 2 5% 55 < i T H o gt AR
EER S R A 217
BRI A T RTEEZ
Bl WA R R B > AL
) 2 Bk o A% it M) % R B S A
P % VEIVSSECY RIES 30
1 2E A2 2 LS H B A 2
A R BAR AN L - 2% T )
VA — AR 2 ] — HE R
fre
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to the exchange restriction imposed by the PRC
government. The Group is exposed to currency
risk primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.

47 Forecast transactions

The Group hedges certain of its estimated
foreign currency exposure in respect of
committed future sales and purchases
and highly probable forecast sales and
purchases. The Group used forward
exchange contracts to mitigate its currency
risk. All of the forward exchange contracts

have maturities of less than one year after

the end of the reporting period.

27

<o Tl JE B A B B O P AHL ()

(d)

0 )l B

PNV B S B O e ]
1 T 4 MR I 2 3 v R T
T Z A HE BR ] o A A B 3 B 3 A
BULEB M Z e BN
BT 2 89 0 R 2 8 WL
(XN e S ER ST E ST

i  HAHXS

AEEBHE T AR OIS
H A% 8 B ' DA R i A ]
REMEAT < TSN 5 I
fili w1 L By R I o AT B
T o A 2 ] {1 7 ) O HE
A I HL W LB o BT A
HISNRE & %) 2 B30T B 2 7 i
HHARE AN
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27 Financial risk management and fair 27 iR B AR B A P E ()
values (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) &R ()
(ii)  Exposure to currency risk @) I B

The following table details the Group’s I ERFE A A AR A R R
exposure at the after the end of the reporting TE LA WA B D e £ W LA SR
period to currency risk arising from ZHALEHEHEZ R E
recognised assets or liabilities denominated FE TR T E AR 2 R R
in a currency other than the functional B 4E - SR 25 H T &
currency of the entity to which they relate. JEG R 2 AR LA R A
For presentation purposes, the amounts o E LUAE & H 2 B R 4
of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, Lo YR BRI A SE TS BA TS IR SR
translated using the spot rate at the year AR B TR
end date. Difference resulting from the I AEFEEN -

translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency is excluded.

31 December 2011 31 December 2010
o e Y = e B i e R
HKD USD HKD usbh
7T E T ESH
000 000 ‘000 ‘000
T T T 2
Trade and other receivables 3¢ 5 S Fo Al fE Uk FH 4,066 10,384 54,785 6,632
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B E%EY 16,002 4,717 9,282 1,677
Pledged deposits CLHE A7 3 4,033 = 4,023 -
Trade and other payables 38 55 J Al A 3 (1,481) (1,915) (79,823) (514)
Loans and borrowings BB M B - - (60,000) (2,036)
Gross exposure arising from B flf 38 & 5 J & 15
recognised assets and 7 2 B A A
liabilities 22,620 13,186 (71,733) 5,759
Notional amounts of forward & HIAME G 41 2 4 % & %
foreign exchange contracts - - - 2,036

Net exposure JE B R 22,620 13,186 (71,733) 7,195
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise if foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period had changed at
that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

27 <ol KR A BE K A P AE (40

(d)

1% g (A

(ii)

2011

ZE K

Increase/
(decrease) in
foreign
exchange rate

B L,/
(T#)

Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained profit
HERH%
R R B
wHN2ZEE

b W B R 0 ()
IR PE T

T SRR i A5 A
KA R R AR I 2 HE 3R
% H A B s 8 > W A
At JL By B WA A S B R
£ 1 2 BRBUAR i A1) e AR B i
W] E th B2 B 5 )

2010
i
Increase/
(decrease) in
foreign
exchange rate

Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained profit
HERBL%
Extm/ WA RRE
(F#)  BHZEE
000 ‘000
T T

United States Dollars b
Hong Kong Dollars 7

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling

at the end of the reporting period for

presentation purposes.

1%
1%

706 1% 334
156 1% 103

ERBIN 2 M A5 RS A
LA AFLE A Z IR
W BB W A 2 ARl
BB 2 288 > Sl 2 51 H /9 %
o W R 2 A o AR
W o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables
within the Group which are denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2010.

Commodity price risk on aluminum

Increasing market fluctuations may result in

significant cash-flow and profit volatility risk for

the Group. The Group’s income or the values of

its holding of financial instruments are affected by

changes in commodity price of aluminium, foreign

exchange rate and interest rate. The objective of

market risk management is to manage and control

market risk exposures within the acceptable

parameters, while minimising the costs on

managing the risk.

27

kB U B A M R

<o Tl o B A B B O P AHL ()

(d)

(e)

TR JEL B (AT
i) S BRI ()
IR PE T (H)

I B 53 T AR R HEE R A i 4K
O HE J DL BT % 5 7 ik
AR A S I JEUR 2 S
JR\ B 2 A G P R G LT
Hoo A48 AR B i s
IIREE W LA MR 4R
P 1A 22 ) TR AT A8 e B i
FRIE o 3 A3l A L 45 R i
ShREB A R E A M 2
B W BT A 2 22 o T
R =% — LA AR 2 2
LT -

S bE Z v (A JL B

T35 H 4 i B o 4 S0 4 1 i
BOR B 4 U i A B Ja g e AR
B 2 W A BT e il TR (E
32 85 Tl B - I R BEE 4 % ] A A
AL B 28 o i 35 Ja g B A R B
T A2 1l i 455 R B AE T 2 52 1 K- >
(] R 16 A 2 JRL e 2 B A 9 8 A A
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27 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(e)

Commodity price risk on aluminum (continued)

The Group seeks to manage and control the market
risks primarily through its regular operating and
financial activities, and uses derivative instruments
when deemed appropriate. All such transactions are
carried out within the guidelines set by the Board
of Directors.

Aluminium ingots are the major raw materials
of the Group’s products which account for
approximately 80% of total cost of sales.
Fluctuations on commodity price of aluminium will
have a significant impact on the Group’s earnings,
cash flows as well as the value of the inventories.
The Group uses its futures contracts traded on
the Shanghai Futures Exchange to reduce its risks
arising from fluctuations in aluminium price. The
Group enters futures based on the inventories
on hand, expected usage of aluminium and sales
requirements. The Group considers that it is not
cost effective to maintain a highly effective hedge
on transaction basis.

The outstanding balances of future contracts

entered as at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in Note 16.

<o Tl JE B A B B O P AHL ()

(e)

B b 2 T A (AR R RS (A )

7 A ] 5 B A — R I U B O
BB AN E TR (R @ )
BB A ) T 5 R < BT A T A
oy ¥ % B 6 o E 35 51 AT -

B G B AN AR W N 2 B R AR
Tk 48 B B AR K180% o #1701 K%
Z W AR L L R B
M EEEA R AR
LM EL S ITEEHESL
DA A AR 81 1 46 e 38 2 JL g o A 4 [
R PEF 07 & - TEMEE =
BORFT T B K - AREERB L
92 538 by FEVMEHEAT 2 5 ol R A A
N &

T 5 A I BT SE B 2 R
1A R L EE R M R 16 -
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27

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management and fair 27
values (continued)

(e)

Commodity price risk on aluminum (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following commodity price sensitivity is
calculated based on the outstanding aluminium
future contracts of the Group as at the end of the
reporting period, assuming 10% (2010: 10%) shift

of future contract price is as follows:

kB U B A M R

<o Tl o B A B B O P AHL ()

(e) SR Z T b A% JEL B (A7)
1k 5T

T 51 T i A5 A R T A A [ A
WA Z R PEREESS B
B A AR TI0% (—F—
T 10%) FHAW R

2011 2010
S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T NRWT T

Profit increase as future contract £ A A AR 04 i £
price increased T 13

A 10% (2010:10%) decrease in future contract
prices of aluminium would have had the equal
but opposite effect on the above aluminium future
contracts to the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

5,411 7,164

1 a5 o Ath 2 2 4 RN 5 BRI &
BHER T E10% (8 —F4:
10% ) 51% 3t I 45 101 8 & 40 HE Al b
RIS G REM R 2 8.
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

®

Fair values

i)

Financial instruments carried at fair
value

The fair value of each financial instrument
is categorised across three levels of the
“fair value hierarchy” defined in IFRS 7,
with the fair value categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

. Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for
similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable
market data

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

At 31 December 2011, the outstanding
trading securities, aluminium future
contracts and forward foreign exchange
contracts of the Group fall into Level 2 of

the fair value hierarchy described above.

27

<o Tl JE B A B B O P AHL ()

AV
i) HATVHEANS 2 A
3 s 1 5579

B & aMTAZAT
{5 00 43 00 5 = M 5000 2

[AFAE B AR L] A

EERE T B A EE

RIEEE L REAREA D

$H o SO E AT

. B f (WA
il A EEE R
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ZHAE -
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%o WA
N BCHR ) L T
2 Rl B 2 T
o

. = (KB
Al o~ AE R R
Ty A E T % W
Hh AT ] S A R
ESR I NSRSk i)
5 Wk -

Wt g
IS ES RS
%5 - 480 5 40 40 S 0 51
] PR
R b 25




Annual Report 2011 4 #it

XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 5% 882 e A R 2 vl

151

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

®

(2)

Fair values (continued)

(ii)

Fair values of financial instruments
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values.

Estimation of fair value

The following summarises the major methods and

assumptions used in estimating the fair values of

financial instruments:

i)

(ii)

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
and finance lease liabilities

The fair value is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for similar

financial instruments.

kB U B A M R

27 <ol KR BE K A P AE (40

®

(2

AT (A1)

(i) DAL TFIEINEZ & TR
19 LTl
3 B B A 2 7 B A o
B4 LA M2 4 TR
T (1 B/ o (8 9 T K %

A A

A B At TR 2 2

(09 By R

@ it

(ii)

DR TS DA R BT R 2
T35 B A% J B M (ORI
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27

Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(2

Estimation of fair value (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees
issued is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for
similar services, when such information
is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated
by reference to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantees are made
available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where
reliable estimates of such information can
be made.

Interest rate used for determining fair
value

The market interest rates adopted are as
follows:

27

<o Tl JE B A B B O P AHL ()

(2)

KA R (A

(iii)

(iv)

g

% 15 1R

T B% i 0 BB 9 IR 2
{8 > 2 BL 2 25 7 A0 47 i 85 1Y)
NFAE oy R T RO ) 2 R]
TG AR B Rk I i E 5 Bt
AT 55 4k 2 75 R A 2 Al
it I AT DUt 8N B 8%
I DR BT R BOICRY B
TE A BASHE AR 25 DU 1
BRI REROBC A B
A B 3 A AR
T SE A B ORI AR E
AR

VALY VRS ek

P iAo B

The Group
A 5
2011 2010
SEEE
% %

B A
SR A A

Loans and borrowings
Finance lease liabilities

6.10% — 7.05%
5.215%

5.35% — 6.40%
4.54%
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28 Commitments 28

BEA AR

(a) Capital commitments (a)

Bt A =4 B R B R
M B R B AT EARIEW T

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

2011 2010
—F 4 —E-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ANR¥ T
Contracted for ELRT4Y
— Build a new aluminium profile ~ — i B #l 1l & 37
production base in Chengdu 8 AL b A R
City 35,156 74,788
— Purchase of property, plant and ~— 3 H. A& T 2
equipment for the production Az B I
base in Yichun City W - W Tk A 37,337 128,592
— Purchase of property, plant and ~ — 23 i LI TH = 7K [ 2.
equipment for the production AE 7 b i
base in Sanshui, Foshan City VENN N & 55,662 2,320
— Purchase of property, plant and — — £ 0B T 2 A& 73 Jik b
equipment for the production WEE W W T
base in Qinyang City Bdi 49,881 -
178,036 205,700
Authorised but not contracted for B IZHEH K FT 4 915,799 1,096,560
Total Ak 1,093,835 1,302,260
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28 Commitments (continued) 28 K ()
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BRI RS
At 31 December, the total future minimum lease Wt H=1—H> WAL Fl
payments under non-cancellable operating leases SR AR 20 M A 1 A R e AR A 4 AR AR
are payable as follows: e
2011 2010
I S S TR R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ANR¥Tx AR T
Within 1 year —4ER 542 635
29 Contingent liabilities 29 A AME
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 W_F——F+H=+—H > KEHI
December 2011. LI N R =R
At 31 December 2011, contingent liabilities of the W E——4FEt+ A =+—H > KNFZ
Company were as follows: HARA MR
The Company
p: YA
2011 2010
- %%k
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARE T N ¥T T
Guarantees given to banks by the AN T AT E A R
Company in respect of banking B 2 $RAT (5 B )
facilities utilised by certain SRAT P 2 IR

subsidiaries

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees.

862,789 827,553

TR A5 AR > HE SRR A AR B R K T BE R
A 385 £ 17 4 1 3R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material related party transactions 30

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors are
of the view that related parties of the Group include the

following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

kB U B A M R

HOR BT R 5

R % 55 B 75 i e FLA A 4 i 48 8 19 52 5 B
K ERSD > AL F TR AEAT LT BEOR B U7 52
R

REE—F——F+ A=+ HIL4F
B EHRB AT AL N AL
2 5

Relationship with the Group

Y EL LA 42 1 A 4

Luo Su Executive Director of the

g Company
ARAFRATESF

Luo Riming Executive Director of the

#E H W] Company
RAFRRNATES

Liao Yuqing Executive Director of the

B X Company
ARAFRATESF

Foshan Leahin Coating Co., Ltd. (i) (“Leahin Coating”)
(Ll 7 BB R A R A | ()

Guangdong Xingfa Curtain Wall, Door & Window Co., Ltd. (1)
(“Xingfa Curtain Wall”) (J& 5B 556 M B AR A ) (@)

Xingfa Group

L 2% £ [

Xingfa Innovation

L%

(i) The English translation of the company names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are
in Chinese.

Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the
Company

MAN RS THATE FE R

Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the
Company

HIA A A A T AT S E R

Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the
Company

MAX RS THATEF TR

Effectively owned by certain
Executive Directors of the
Company

MAN RS THATEFE R

@ RSN TSSO A I 2 o RS Y
] Y 3044 A R AR
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(continued)

(a) Transactions

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 Material related party transactions 30 HERBHHEGTRY (4)
(a) 25
@ Sales and purchase @) HE
2011 2010
I S R -FAE
RMB’000 RMB 000
ARWFx AR BT
Sales of goods to BTN
— Xingfa Curtain Wall — BB e 95,451 45,519
Purchases of raw e B IR R R B
materials from
— Leahin Coating — 7 B R 2,165 8,678
(ii)  Operating lease arrangements (i) AEHELH
The Group
A 45 M
2011 2010
R4 “E-F4E
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR NRHTF T
Operating lease expenses AR BT
charged by
— Xingfa Group —E B - 2,389
— Xingfa Innovation — BLEE A = 757
Total s %+ = 3, 146
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kB U B A M R

30 Material related party transactions 30 WEARBHEITRY 4)
(continued)
(a)  Transactions (continued) (a) R5 (4)
(iii)  Financial guarantees (iii) M FE R

Certain banking facilities utilised by the
Group were guaranteed by the following

R AR AL BT B A
A7 T HATAE B T 5 B

related parties as at the end of the reporting T #ER
period.
The Group
A 5
2011 2010
R -—fF —E-FE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARW T AR T T
Luo Su, Luo Riming, and iy T NG
Liao Yuqing B 202,000 261,500
Xingfa Group, Luo Su, Luo LR S QURS
Riming and Liao Yuging A H B S B £ B 34,290 25,000
Xingfa Group BLBE A [ 15,000 5,000
Total Ak 251,290 291,500

The Group did not issue financial /e b O G S S5
TZA=Zt—H A EEN
A 16 SRAT AR 1w B R =
U7 2 SRATAE BB B A
5o

guarantees to banks in respect of banking
facilities to either the related parties or third
parties as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.
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30 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following balances with related parties:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 EABETRY (4)

(b)

S B T R A

A 3 A > AR A [ B B 3 O A 4
fRANR

i) Trade and other receivables (i) X5 Je H Al W W 5k JH
2011 2010
g SEE
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR T N R WF T
Trade related B 5 A H
Xingfa Curtain Wall BB 72,280 5,111

(ii) Trade and other payables

i) K5 T H b M H

2011 2010
R
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt N BRWT T

Trade related B 5 A H
Leahin Coating S Bk

The amounts due from/(to) related parties
are unsecured, interest free and have no

fixed terms of repayment.

81 1,020

JE W, CRE A ) Bt 7 3k A
Sy KA G S HL A R




Annual Report 2011 4§ XINGFA ALUMINIUM HOLDINGS LIMITED 85§ g8 3% 3 Bt 45 FR 2> %

159

30

31

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

kB U B A M R

Material related party transactions 30 WEARBHEITRY 4)

(continued)

(¢) Key management personnel compensation (c) FEERABEME
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEEMANB Z MG (BIEMHET &
including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors B 840 il e % 8 S AT T AR R B #E
as disclosed in Note 7 and the senior management FREBERANBNEE) W

as disclosed in Note 8, is as follows:

2011 2010
EeE CEFE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TIT ANRH T

Short-term employee benefits FLIR B AR A 5,780 4,796
Contribution to retirement benefit plan B ARAE I ET
ik 67 58
5,847 4,854
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” P 4 BB AE R AT B TR A | (M 7%
(Note 5(b)). 5(b))

Non-adjusting events after the reporting 31 %5 W% = JE B HIH
period

On 9 March 2012, the Group entered into an agreement o EFE—TFE=ZHNE REEEERE
with existing shareholders of Guangdong Star Lake New W MR BR A & (TR ) (B —
Material Company Limited (“Star Lake Material”), an FN Mz T 2 B A RRF L —
entity registered in the PRC. Pursuant to the agreement, 3 Yo e o M B % B ok A B B[] AR
the Group agreed to invest RMB11,911,500, representing RM11,911,5007C - A ) B2 10 44 e HE 2
3.89% of the equity interests of Star Lake Material. The 3.89% o B M Bt 2 F BT T R R 8
principal activities of Star Lake Material are manufacturing R O R A WYR o 5% AUE I i A
and sale of nonferrous metals and biomaterials. The 8RR G TR A 42 B BA S W R A R o

investment will be stated at cost less impairment loss in the
consolidated financial statements.
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32 Accounting estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,

after taking into account the estimated residual

value.

The Group reviews annually the useful life of an

asset and its residual value, if any. The depreciation

expense for future years is adjusted if there are

significant changes from previous estimation.

Impairments

@

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments,
recoverable amount of these assets needs
to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the net selling price and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling price because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be
readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by
the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover
and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of

items such as turnover and operating costs.

32

CERCED

fFRERBIIR R 2 =T ma T

(a)

(b)

e

Yo~ RS K st K6 RE DAl R R 6%
(AR - 1 fl wt Al R AE A L
Bk -

AR B B A A 1 T4 R
LR (IAT) o A A FH A
HOR WO IR H R AR I
BA 3

A

) EFREETYE WS k&
i B E A A 4 B9 BB(E I 1R
5 7H i 5 % S I AT IR
(o] BCRE o T i (e I A 4
B E M 2 A -
H RS 5 R AG 3% 55 R Y T
S ¥ > HOHE DORS REAG R
B o % T E (8 T (B IR 5 1 T
ST e P B L R I
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32 Accounting estimates (continued)

(b) Impairments (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are assessed and provided based
on the directors’ regular review of aging
analysis and evaluation of collectability. A
considerable level of judgment is exercised
by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

Impairment losses for inventories are
assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of market price
against inventories costs. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the
directors when assessing the market price.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment losses would affect the net
profit or loss in future years.

kB U B A M R

32 #atthEt o
(b) Wk ()
i) RSP I o A 07

(iii)

At B4 B i 2 A R AT s ] AR
JE BT HE AT R A M A -
HIE RS F P 115 AP
Je a1 ISR AT Bk R At AR K
L L 4 ) B o

bl A 4L 450 2
73R A 1 R S
4

A B I A Al 4% 3 o
T A8 B B A B A A T
A B Bt A o B A SE Al T
B 5 A AR O R B g
i o

g 3 (L 4 9 A T 0 9
B BRI AR BE 19 A0 M B
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33

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2011 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which

may be relevant to the Group.

33

R A B R Y D B O o I e
W Z B & sl TSR EE —%F——
T = B R R A T
Lo T YRR e JU) > T A S S S A S S R A %
SEAERT S e R LA T B AT e B A 42 1
A B BB RT B vE AL o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
7P H B 2z &

b 4 B & w8 ) A 2

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes

— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

B g R RIS 1298 2 ABRT > BT AR B — B AE B - i IE A B R

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

B g e R 1 BE 2 BT - BB TR
— H A WU AT H 2 )

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

I % A 5 i o ) BB 1098 > AR5 B R

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

% B 5 i e RN SR 1358 PR

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

W wh e R 279% - WL MBS R (ZF ——4F)

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits
REAEwT B PR g whHE RIS 1958 (R B AR A

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

I P 5 o R BN ST 9E 2 B RT > i T -

— 5 5 4 R e AR

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation
— Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

B Pt E R S35 2 B ET > S T A - 2R

— IR < A % A

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

I P o 5 A RSO - el TR

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Company’s results of operations and
financial position.

1 January 2012

e e
1 July 2012
“%—EEAH

1 January 2013

SF =
1 January 2013
“EF—-=4—H—H
1 January 2013
L
1 January 2013
.

1 January 2013

S

1 January 2014

SE [

1 January 2015
“E-HFE—-HA—H

A B IE A TR M D % S A T D
5B o2 4 J 1k > AR FRE 5 R A LAt
ERT -~ BE kR A g R E R BA LA
1) K8 7 S A8 S A B AR DL
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(YN RIS )
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
"R D% CETNE ZFRNE ZTRLE
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBFL ARBFTT AREFTT AREFTT ARKFTL
Assets and liabilities GrERAE
Property, plant and equipment VEN YT 1,331,446 976,726 531,824 351,713 139,007
Lease prepayments B E 379,957 379,919 295,753 153,661 -
Prepayment for machinery e #5825 IA 56,326 107,050 - - -
Deferred tax assets EEH IR G 39,191 25,726 16,075 390 -
Net current (liabilities)/assets WE (AR EREFH (276,276) (63,902) 131,149 157,998 376,321
Total assets less current liabilities 48 2 J i ) & (& 1,530,644 1,425,519 974,801 663,762 515,328
Non-current liabilities FhEaE (755,237) (648,1006) (258,587) - (80,000)
Net assets g3 a A 775,407 777,413 716,214 663,762 435328
Capital and reserves WA T Rt A
Share capital Tl A 3,731 3,731 3,731 3,731 210,000
Reserves [t 771,676 773,682 712,483 660,031 225,328
Total equity attributable 2 I BE 5 A\ B 25
to equity holders of the FoF
Company 775,407 777413 716,214 663,762 435,328
Operating results ik
Turnover B 3,067,450 2,305,749 1,871,480 2,136,368 2,148,674
Profit before taxation W B i i 18,388 82,927 81,696 38,017 290,923
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fra® (B ) /b (3,576) (10,044) (11,488) (8,704) 677
Profit for the year A P i A 14,812 72,883 70,208 29,313 291,600
Attributable to: BB
Equity holders of the Company A& /A a] i #EREH A 14,812 72,883 70,208 29,313 291,750
Minority interests D L TR = - - - (150)
Profit for the year A B i A 14,812 72,883 70,208 29,313 291,600
Basic and diluted earnings A I B A T 8 R A
per share (RMB yuan) (AR#T) 0.035 0.174 0.168 0.075 0.937
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
13 September 2007 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of the
Group on 29 February 2008.

Although the Reorganisation was not completed until 29 February
2008, the Group is regarded as a continuing group resulting from
the Reorganisation. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the basis that the Company has been treated as
the holding company of the Group since 1 January 2005, rather
than from 29 February 2008. Accordingly, the consolidated results
of the Group for the four years ended 31 December 2008 have
been prepared as if the Aluminium Profile Business had been
operated by the subsidiaries now comprising the Group and the
group structure immediately after the Reorganisation had been in
existence since 1 January 2005. This financial summary includes
the consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group with effect from 1 January 2005 or since
their respective dates of incorporation, whichever is a shorter
period. The consolidated balance sheets at 31 December 2005,
2006, 2007 are the combination of the balance sheets of the
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group at 31
December 2005, 2006 and 2007. In the opinion of the directors,
the resulting consolidated financial statements give a more
meaningful view of the results and state of affairs of the Group as
a whole.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years
ended 31 December 2007 is based on the profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company and the 311,410,000 shares
in issue as at the date of the Prospectus, as if the shares were
outstanding throughout the entire period.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

ARAF TR ZEELENA = IR SR
B E (— N —FH3 98k B H0nE #45
G R AEET) W BB RS B ST B R e PR
A AR EA ARNFN EFE/E AT
H B A 4 1) 2 3 e s ) o

BEEAR EENFE A I EE
B> Ml A S T AR 2 R AR T 7 A 2 Fp AR A A
P o 5 AR AR To A A RIS o [ — R T
A B (mArdE A = FFANEZH =+
FI ) R 2% A A T 22 42 B 2 ) 2 B MR T A 44 o 1)
e AEEBE - EENEL A=+ —H1k
VU 8] 47 JBE 2 55 4 SE AR T HR 00 T 68 R bR 2B |l AR
SN BLRF TR R B 7l 3 — R HAE—J]—H
RS HEMEMAR ZEMERT —FEN
A ] R — AT T A e A U
5 A2 R BA G2 T BLIRE R B 4 R (o =%
LHAE— ] — FBE [ HA A 25 asr 73
(LARAE IR 2 Y8 ) ARk ) 2 i el o IR 2%
TR LN R ZERR LA ] S
H 2 &5 6 6 B RER T A O 7] R A [ BLIE
HEET B ) 2 WS R R TLAR S R RN
FREEL A= -HZEEABKRE O
I o TEE R A > T A 2 B B W R AR A
T 7 A T R 2E A B IR L

BE EZTLES A=+ —HIE=REREZ
g B AR ) T 1 AR A IRERE A B A T
Fs s I B2 H O E 85 47311,410,000/8 8 143 5t
B A% A R S B ) — R AE A o

A S0 AN A A A B R 2 —
o




Suite 1513, 15/F, Tower 6, The Gateway, Harbour City, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENERDBGEBHBRHAEECE151E1513%
Tel E5%: 852-2175 5388 Fax {&K: 852-2175 5383

No. 23 Renhe Road, Nanzhuang Town, Chancheng District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province, China (Postcode: 528061)
R Bl ER A L h & R R i A M E% 2358 (E4m: 528061)
Tel E5E: 86-757-8533 2727 Fax {#H: 86-757-8538 7628

Website #931t: www.xingfa.com
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